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COMPANY PROFILE
Aliip]y

China Financial Leasing Group Limited (Stock Code: 2312, HE4mHEAEEEER QA (KM AR
“CFLG” or the “Company”, with its subsidiaries, collectively 2312 [FEEBMEE |k [AR A RE
the “Group”) is an investment company. Incorporated in the HEBATF  #fE[A£E]) A HERERQ
Cayman lIslands, the Company’s shares have been listed @ - AR TR SBHETMAT @ IH
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock —ZZ-F+AHEEFEHAEZIMER
Exchange”) since October 2002. ANal([BAZFT]) £ o

CFLG strives to create value for its shareholders, leveraging HFEEBEER N EEAENNTISREA
on favourable market conditions. With strong government H&XFEAIEEBE - BBRFTHITEAR X
industry support, unique investment approach, and in-depth  # > A5 BENERE TN UALHRET S
knowledge of the investment market, CFLG would remain # R AR PEcRHEERKRETHB
highly adaptive to market conditions and would continue to SRR EEE > WK EFEBEABNITEN
look out for opportunities in potential sectors. e -

‘ China Financial Leasing Group Limited ‘ Annual Report 2013



DIRECTORS’ STATEMENT
o

Dear Shareholders,

The Board of Directors (the “Directors”) are pleased to
present you with the 2013 Annual Report of China Financial
Leasing Group Limited (the “Company”) for the year ended 31
December 2013.

During 2013, the Company’s business was mainly investments
in Hong Kong listed securities continuously. Generally
speaking, the Hong Kong stock market was still relatively
inert where the daily turnover was lower than HK$70 billion
most of the time. Even though, the difference between the
peak and trough of The Hang Seng Index during the year
amounted to some 4,000 points which provided some room
for the Company to take short-term profit. In addition to the
strengthening of the investment team and the top management
of the Company, we managed to outperform the previous
years and recorded investment gains (both unrealised and
unrealised). Of course, the successful introduction of tighter
cost control measures and enhancement of internal control
have also contributed to narrow down the loss.

CHINA ECONOMY

China continues to exert substantial influence on the Hong
Kong stock market and it is believed that the influence
keeps increasing. The current consensus is that the high
growth period in China is over and the GDP growth would
tend to be relatively flattened compared with the previous
decade. Moreover, since the inauguration of the new Beijing
administration in 2012, a more pragmatic approach has
been adopted to the economic development which would be
beneficial to China in the long-run but an adjustment in the
public expectation of a slower economic growth in the short-
run would be unavoidable.

Apart from the slower economic growth, the China’s economy
is also haunted by several factors: The excess production
capacity in many industries (one of the most remarkable
is real estate sector), the shortage of money supply, the
fragility of the financial sector arisen from the poor quality
of wealth management products and of the loan quality lent
by the shadow banks, even the heavy air pollution in many
major cities post serious threats to the economic prospect
of China. In spite of the sign of recovery from the United
States which would help stimulate the export, the trend has
yet been conspicuous. And, in case of appreciation of the US
dollars, those China enterprises which have borrowed debts
nominated in the greenbacks would have been suffered.
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DIRECTORS’ STATEMENT
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SILVER LINING ON RECOVERY OF THE US
ECONOMY

The Federal Reserve of The United States announced in the
fourth quarter of 2013 the tapering of bond purchase from
monthly US$85 billion per month to US$75 billion and the scale
keeps reducing. Apparently, the worst time is over but the
economy is still fragile and the way to full recovery is believed
to be long. Moreover, the recent snow storm took place in
The United States as well as The United Kingdom has caused
severe economic loss that it is uncertain to what extent the
adverse effect to the economy of The United States will be.

PROSPECT

We believe that, having considered the above macroeconomic
factors, the performance of stock market in Hong Kong in
2014, although highly correlated with the China’s economy, is
relatively optimistic. The reasons are (i) The P/E ratio of Hong
Kong market is low compared with other major stock markets
of the developed economic entities; (ii) the fundamentals of
Hong Kong are sound which makes Hong Kong a safe place to
invest. In case of geographical-specific event causing outflow
of funds, Hong Kong can be an excellent alternative. As long
as we are able to grasp the right timing to make the right
investment decision, it would not be impossible to outperform.

Last but not the least, on behalf of the Board, allow me to
extend my sincere gratitude to our shareholders for your
continuing support. Appreciation also goes to the management
team and all staff of the Group for their dedications and
contributions in the past year.

Choi Wai King
Executive Director
Hong Kong, 28 March 2014
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year ended 2013, the Company was mainly
engaged in investments in Hong Kong listed securities for the
purpose of short to medium term capital appreciation.

With the strengthening of the investment team and better
management, the portfolio of the Company recorded both
realised and unrealised gain. Although the Company recorded
a net loss for the year ended 2013, it has been substantially
reduced due to the effective cost control and enhancement
of internal control and the reduced legal and professional
expenses.

The Group’s 12% equity interest investment in a private
company in Beijing, the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”)
which engaged in wholesale of high technology electronic
products (i.e., light emitting diode products) was disposed
of due to the saturation of the domestic market in China that
failed to meet the original expectation of the management.
The management believed that it would be in the interests to
the Company and shareholders as a whole to dispose of the
investment in order to retain as much capital as possible for
other investments which could generate better return. As a
result, the equity interest was sold at HK$2,000,000 and the
disposal was completed at the end of 2013, recording a loss of
approximately HK$1,341,000.

OUTLOOK

All'in all, it is believed that the economy in the United States
remains sluggish and the road to full recovery is still long. The
worst time for Europe seems to have pulled through but it is
not expected any surprise on economic growth. China is still
anticipated to be the growth engine for the global economy,
but it has several challenges to deal with. Although the Board
has the confidence that it can overcome all those difficulties,
the GDP growth will have to be slower compared with previous
years. The stock market in Hong Kong is on one hand highly
correlated to China’s economy but on the other hand is mature
enough to act as a shelter for funds from worldwide that makes
the Board to be cautiously optimistic on its performance in
2014,
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

As at 31 December 2013, the carrying value of the Group’s
listed equity investments were approximately HK$34,430,000
(2012: HK$39,367,000).

The Group recorded sales proceeds from disposals of trading
equity securities of approximately HK$67,758,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2013 (2012: HK$49,804,000) and
recorded realised gain of approximately HK$2,787,000 (2012:
loss of HK$4,950,000) and unrealised gain of approximately
HK$213,000 (2012: loss of HK$1,105,000). Loss for the year
was approximately HK$9,863,000 (2012: HK$22,862,000)
which was mainly attributable for the operating expenses and
disposal loss in equity investment.

Bt % 121
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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EQUITY INVESTMENTS RAEERE
Listed below are the particulars of the Group’s listed equity AEBR_ZE—=F+-_A=Z=+—HB2 L
investments as at 31 December 2013: ARG EEHH 0T -

Dividend
received Percentage of
for the investments
year ended attributable
Number of  Percentage of Market Market 31 December Dividend ~tothe Group's
Name of Investes Principl activities Shares interest held t prices Value COver net assets

Ming Kei Holdings Limtted  Coal trading and property investment 5782400 0.874%  1,302,777.02 0.450 2,679,580 - N/A 5.9399%
(6239) EERRIBHERR TR

BERRERA729)

Datronix Hololngs Limited ~ Manufacturing and trading of 126,000 0.009%  364,866.44 1290 162,540 3,004 7.36 0.3743%
(0889) glectronic components

BEMRERRRAY  REREEITEA
(0889)

Yantai North Andre Juice  Manufacturing and sale of apple 7,500 0.005% 22,204.96 1.830 13,72 1,246 5.34 0.0316%
Co. Ltd. (2218 Juice concentrate, pear juice

RathzEiRt concentrate, apple essence,

RiEBAF219) feedstuf and related products
SEREEREED

BEUT EERR
HHRBER
Newtree Group Holdings ~ Manufacture and trading of hygienic 1,940,000 0.266%  5,621,796.65 3210 6,343,800 - N/A 14.6077%
Limited (1329) disposables for household and aylii
RIEEERERAR clinical uses; agent of MTBE
(1323) products; wholesale and retail of
household consumables

YEREE-IFAR
BERGLAR: PANT AR
5 HERZERFE KR
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Name of Investes

Wealth Glory Hololngs
Limited (8269)
EERRERA7R269

Long Success
International Holdings
Limited (8017)

ARER(ER)
BRI

Rising Power GP Holdings
Limited (8047)

ANEEERERAT
(8047)

- ‘ China Financial Leasing Group Limited ‘ Annual Report 2013

Number of

Principl activities Shares

Supply and sale of dried noodles; 4,352,000
manufacture and sale of fresh
noodles; investment in coal
{racing business; and trading
of natural resources and
commoties

HER ﬁﬁﬁi% ‘%» RHERER
KRERREASHANEERN
ERRm

Manufacturing and sale of paper 13,450,000

products

JZW EEMRER

Provision of integrated solutions
for ightning electromagnetic
nulse protection busingss,
the provision of energy
management business and
energy conservation (saving) and
emission reduction business

R EETHENER K Lok
L i%%m%&mﬁﬁn
DR (RN

5,800,000

Percentage of Market
interest held t prices

0365%  912766.17 0.145
0916%  8,105,611.21 0.406
1.313%  4,707,00.31 0.720

Market
Valug

631,040

5,447,250

4,176,000

Dividend
received
for the
Year ended
31 December
2013

Percentage of
investments
attributable

Dividend ~ to the Group's
Cover net assets

N/A 1.4531%
e

NA  12.6432%
A

NA 9.6159%



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Name of Investes

Opes Asia Development
Limited (0810)

ERONARERAA
(0810)

China Assurance Finance
Group Limited (8090)

PERREEEEARA
7(8090)

JC Group Holdings
Limited (8326)

JC Group Holdings
Limited(8326)

i 2 43 T

Number of
Principl activities Shares

Percentage of
interest held

Investment in liste and unlisted 3.898%
companies

RE LRk MR

14,000,000 2,947,644.00

Providing corporate credit guarantee 5,800,000 0.366%  7,908,451.04
services, performance guarantee
senices and the relevant
consultant services to small and
medlum enterprises in the PRC

RUATREERRE
BORREERAED HLE
LEBERRE

Operation of full-service restaurants 1.000%  2,486,448.00
and cake shops

BRLRRRRRAE

4,000,000

During the year ended 31 December 2013, no provisions were
made to any investment in the Company’s portfolio from time

to time.

Market
rices

0.190

1.720

0610

Dividend

received

for the

Year ended

Market 31 December
Value 2013

S

2,660,000 =

9,976,000 =

2,440,000 =

Percentage of
investments
attributable

Dividend ~ to the Group's
Cover net assets

N/A 6.1251%
TeR

NA  2.9714%
i
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LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND

FUNDING

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had maintained cash
and cash equivalents of approximately HK$8,641,000 (2012:
HK$8,300,000) which were mainly denominated in Hong Kong
dollars. The Group will monitor the exposure and take prudent
measures when necessary.

The gearing ratio of the Group as at 31 December 2013 was Nil
(31 December 2012: Nil).

The Group had net assets of approximately HK$43,053,000
(2012: HK$52,916,000) and there were no borrowings or long-
term liabilities as at 31 December 2013 (2012: Nil).

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 31 December 2013, the Company’s total issued shares
was 443,479,882 at HK$0.02 each. Subsequently on 20
and 21 February 2014, the Company has entered into a
placing agreement and a revised placing agreement with
Orient Securities Limited (“Orient”) as placing agent where
Orient agreed to place on a best effort basis a maximum of
88,600,000 new shares of the Company (“Placing Share”) of
HK$0.02 each at HK$0.26 per Placing Share to at least six
placees who were professional investors according to the
definition of The Securities and Futures Ordinance. The close
price of the Company shares on the date the said agreements
were entered into was HK$0.29. The Directors considered
that the placing transaction represented an attractive
opportunity to raise capital of the Company while broadening
the Shareholders base and capital base of the Company.
The intended and actual use of proceeds from the share
placement was for general working capital and investments is
listed securities and any projects to be identified. The placing
transaction was completed on 4 March 2014 and a total of
88,600,000 shares were placed. The gross and net proceeds
were approximately HK$23,040,000 and HK$22,330,000
respectively. The net placing price was approximately
HK$0.25.
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EVENT AFTER REPORT DATE

The Company conducted a share placement of 88,600,000
new shares of the Company subsequently in February 2014.
Please refer to section “Capital Structure” for detail.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL
OF SUBSIDIARIES

The Group has not made any material acquisition or disposal of
subsidiaries during the year under review.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had 6 employees. Total
salary, housing cost and pension cost for the year ended
31 December 2013 was approximately HK$4,082,000 and
Directors’ fees were approximately HK$2,649,000. The
remuneration policy of the Group is reviewed annually and
employees are remunerated based on their performance,
experience and the prevailing market practice. No director or
executive is involved in dealing with his own remuneration.

In addition to salary payments, the Company has participated
in the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF Scheme”) in
Hong Kong. The MPF Scheme is registered with the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Authority under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. The assets of the MPF
Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in funds
under the control of an independent trustee. Pursuant to the
rules of the MPF Scheme, the Group and its employees are
each required to make contributions to the scheme at 5% of
their monthly relevant income.

The Company maintains a share option scheme, pursuant
to which share options are granted to selected directors or
employees of the Group, with a view to attract and retain
quality personnel and to provide them with incentive to
contribute to the business and operation of the Group. During
the year, no share options were granted to any Directors,
employees or eligible participants of the Group. Subsequently
on 3 April 2014, a total of 39,870,000 options were granted
to eligible participants at exercise price of HK$0.67 each. The
exercise period of the options is from 3 April 2014 to 2 April
2017. No vesting period is imposed. Of which, each of Mr. Yen
Jong Ling and Mr. Tang Yiu Wing was granted with 4,430,000
options.
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CHARGES ON GROUP ASSETS

During the year, there were no charges on the Group’s assets
(2012: Nil).

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

During the year 2013, the investments of the Group were
mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollars. Therefore, there
was no material foreign exchange exposure to the Company.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

During the year, there were no contingent liabilities noted by
the Directors (2012: Nil).

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

The Company invested RMB2,400,000 (equivalent to
HK$3,341,000) in a LED solution provider incorporated in
the PRC for 12% of the equity interest in 2011. Due to the
unsatisfactory performance, the Company disposed of the
entire 12% equity interest in 2013 for HK$2,000,000.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Directors did not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2013 (2012: Nil).

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during
the year ended 31 December 2013.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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The Company is committed to maintaining good corporate
governance standards and procedures to ensure the integrity,
transparency and quality of disclosure, thereby enhancing
shareholder value.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company has adopted the code provisions of The
Corporate Governance Code And Corporate Governance
Report as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”) as its own
code of corporate governance practices.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Company was
in compliance with the code provisions set out in the CG Code
except for the deviation from code provision A.4.1.

Code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code provides that non-
executive directors should be appointed for a specific term
and subject to re-election. The independent non-executive
Directors are not appointed for a specific term but they are
subject to retirement by rotation at least once in every three
years in accordance with the Articles of Association of the
Company (the “Articles”).

Save as aforesaid and in the opinion of the Directors, the
Company was in compliance with the code provisions set out
in the CG Code during the year ended 31 December 2013.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
The Company has adopted the required standards of dealings
regarding securities transactions by Directors as set out in the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules.

All the Directors have confirmed that they have complied
with the required standards as set out in the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2013.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the
Company and oversees the Group’s businesses, investment
and strategic decisions and performance. The Board
delegated authority and responsibility for day-to-day portfolio
management of the Group to the Investment Manager, while
reserving certain key matters for the approval by the Board. In
addition, the Board has also delegated various responsibilities
to the Board committees.

Further details of these committees are set out in this report.
The Board currently consists of six Directors including two
executive Directors, one non-executive Director and three
independent non-executive Directors:

Executive Directors
Mr. Choi Wai King
Mr. John Yen Jong Ling

Non-executive Director
Mr. Tang Yiu Wing

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. William Keith Jacobsen

Ms. Chan Man Yi

Ms. Kwong Ka Ki

The Board members have no financial, business, family or
other material/relevant relationships with each other. Such
balanced Board composition is formed to ensure strong
independence exists across the Board and has met the
recommended practice under the CG Code for the Board to
have at least one-third of its members comprising independent
non-executive Directors. The biographical information of the
Directors are set out under the section headed “Biographical
Details of Directors” on pages 29 to 34 of this report.

CHAIRMAN AND GENERAL MANAGER

The office of the chairman of the Board is currently vacant that
the roles and duties of which are assumed by the Board. The
general manager, Mr. Choi Chiu Ming, Jimmy, is responsible
for day-to-day management of business. Therefore, a clear
division of responsibilities is in place and a balance of power
and authority is still ensured.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

The Company has one non-executive Director, namely Mr.
Tang Yiu Wing. Mr. Tang has entered into appointment letter
with the Company with no specific term for appointment. In
accordance with the Articles, he is subject to retirement at the
Company’s next annual general meeting after his appointment.

All the non-executive Directors are subject to retirement by
rotation at least once in every three years in accordance with
the Articles.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The three independent non-executive Directors are persons of
high calibre, with academic and professional qualifications, and
extensive experience in the fields of accounting, financial, legal
and corporate finance. With their extensive experience, they
provide strong support towards the effective discharge of the
duties and responsibilities of the Board.

All independent non-executive Directors have given their
annual confirmation of independence to the Company, and the
Company considered that they are independent under Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules.

All independent non-executive Directors are not appointed for
a specific term, but they are subject to retirement by rotation in
accordance with the Articles.

BOARD MEETINGS

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Board has
held 22 meetings. All Directors are given an opportunity to
include any matters in the agenda for all Board meetings and
are given sufficient time to review documents and information
relating to matters to be discussed during the Board meetings
in advance. For all regular Board meetings, the Board reviewed
the operation and financial performance, and reviewed and
approved the annual and interim results. And in order to ensure
all Directors could plan in advance their availability, a notice of
at least 14 days is given.
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Details of the attendance of the board of Directors’ meetings BEe@@ 2 LEFBOT :
are as follows:

Name of Directors

Attendance/Number of meetings

EEUA LERE EEINE
Executive Directors HITEE

Mr. Choy Kwok Hung, Patrick' BB Sp 18/22
Mr. Chan Chi Hung? PR =98 o A2 13/13
Mr. Choi Wai King?® BER S 11/12
Mr. John Yen Jong Ling* B e 17/19
Non-executive Directors HHITEE

Mr. Yang Nai Jiang® BT e Es 0/11
Mr. Wang Qiang® F 58 Sk Ao 4/19
Mr. Tang Yiu Wing’ BB AL S A7 -
Independent Non-executive Directors B ITESE

Mr. Chung Koon Yan? 15 A ke 3/3
Mr. Yue Man Yiu, Matthew?® E ' e 4/4
Mr. Chung Shu Kun, Christopher® SE AR 5 Ao 0/4
Mr. Chan Kam Man® PR 68 S SE A6 22/22
Ms. Kwok Yuen Lam, Sophia® SRBE IR 2L 16 22/22
Ms. Mak Man Yi, Jackie™ BEUE L0 a/7
Mr. William Keith Jacobsen' ERAKE 9/18
Ms. Chan Man Yi'! PR E/ B 15/18
Ms. Kwong Ka Ki’ Bm i+ -

1. Mr. Choy Kwok Hung, Patrick resigned on 7 February 2014. 1. EEELRENR T —NE - AL HEHE -

2. Mr. Chan Chi Hung resigned on 15 July 2013. 2. BREBEEN_T—=FA+HABT -

3. Mr. Choi Wai King was appointed on 3 May 2013. 3. BEEREEN_T—=—FHHA=-ABZE-

4, Mr. John Yen Jong Ling was appointed as non-executive director on 4. BRRAEEN_ZE—=F—AT/\REZTA
18 January 2013 and re-designated as executive Director on 3 June FEMITES N _Z—=FA=A#EAR
2018. BITESE o

. Mr. Yang Nai Jiang was removed on 8 May 2013. 5. BINTAEER —T—=Fh A/\BFER -

6. Mr. Wang Qiang, Mr. Chan Kam Man and Ms. Kwok Yuen Lam, Sophia 6. FoR%EAE - BRBIGTERDHMEZ TR E
were removed on 22 January 2014. —MHFE—AZ+ZAEER -

7. Mr. Tang Yiu Wing and Ms. Kwong Ka Ki were appointed on 22 7. HRETERBEHEHZLTR T —HNF— A
January 2014. —t+-HEZE-

8. Mr. Chung Koon Yan resigned on 18 January 2013. 8. BEREEN T —=F—A+/\BHT-

9. Mr. Yue Man Yiu, Matthew and Mr. Chung Shu Kun, Christopher 9. ROBIEE RBEIIREEN T —=F = —
resigned on 1 February 2013. HE¥E -

10. Ms. Mak Man Yi, Jackie resigned on 28 March 2013. 10. BREZLIN T —=F=A=+ N\HEHE -

REHAERREUENER -2 —=F - —
HERE-
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Board minutes are kept by the Company Secretary and are
open for inspection by the Directors. Every Board member is
entitled to have access to Board papers and related materials
and has unrestricted access to the advice and services of
the Company Secretary, and has the right to seek external
professional advice if so required.

Appropriate insurance cover has been arranged in respect of
relevant actions against its Directors.

DIRECTORS’ INDUCTION AND
CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

Each newly appointed Director would receive an induction
covering the Group’s business operations, policies and
procedures and the statutory and regulatory obligations of a
director of a listed company. The Group also provides briefings
and other training to develop and refresh the Directors’
knowledge and skills. The Group continuously updates
Directors on the latest developments regarding the Listing
Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements, to ensure
compliance and enhance their awareness of good corporate
governance practices. Circulars or guidance notes are issued
to Directors and senior management where appropriate, to
ensure awareness of best corporate governance practices.
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According to the records provided by the Directors, during
the period from 1 January 2013 to 31 December 2013, the

Directors participated in the following trainings:

Name of Directors

BEENA

T-=£—§

—RE_ZE-=F+-"A=1+—HHH
EEC2ETAE -

Type of trainings

Executive Directors

Mr.
Mr.
Mr.
Mr.

Choy Kwok Hung, Patrick’
Chan Chi Hung?

Choi Wai King?®

John Yen Jong Ling*

Non-executive Directors

Mr.
Mr.
Mr.

Yang Nai Jiang®
Wang Qiang®
Tang Yiu Wing”’

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr.
Mr.
Mr.
Mr.
Ms.
Ms.
Mr.
Ms.
Ms.

o=

10.
11.
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Chung Koon Yan®

Yue Man Yiu, Matthew?®
Chung Shu Kun, Christopher®
Chan Kam Man®

Kwok Yuen Lam, Sophia®
Mak Man Yi, Jackie'®

William Keith Jacobsen'
Chan Man Yi"

Kwong Ka Ki”

attending seminars and/or conferences and/or forums relating to

directors’ duties

reading newspaper, journals and updates relating to the economy,

general business or directors’ duties etc.

HITEE

S ST A
PR S A2
BT
B s

HERITEF
15 YL S s
Tog A

BRRR LR A

BUIFNTEF

$EIE A S e
ROHR I &0
B AR ST Ao
BR &7 3 S Ao
FB g 22 1o
BEEL L0
EREELAE
BREE/ A
REE 7

Mr. Choy Kwok Hung, Patrick resigned on 7 February 2014.

Mr. Chan Chi Hung resigned on 15 July 2013.

Mr. Choi Wai King was appointed on 3 May 2013.

Mr. John Yen Jong Ling was appointed as non-executive director on
18 January 2013 and re-designated as executive Director on 3 June

2013.

Mr. Yang Nai Jiang was removed on 8 May 2013.

Mr. Wang Qiang, Mr. Chan Kam Man and Ms. Kwok Yuen Lam, Sophia

were removed on 22 January 2014.

Mr. Tang Yiu Wing and Ms. Kwong Ka Ki were appointed on 22

January 2014.

Mr. Chung Koon Yan resigned on 18 January 2013.

Mr. Yue Man Yiu, Matthew and Mr. Chung Shu Kun, Christopher

resigned on 1 February 2013.

Ms. Mak Man Yi, Jackie resigned on 28 March 2013.

Mr. William Keith Jacobsen and Ms. Chan Man Yi were appointed on 1

February 20183.
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NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The Nomination Committee was established on 21 December
2011 with written terms of reference in compliance with the
Listing Rules, and currently consists of three independent non-
executive Directors, namely Ms. Kwong Ka Ki (chairperson of
the Nomination Committee), Mr. William Keith Jacobsen and
Ms. Chan Man Yi.

The Nomination Committee is mainly responsible for reviewing
the structure, size and composition of the Board, identifying
qualified individuals to become members of the Board,
assessing the independence of the independent non-executive
Directors and making recommendations to the Board on
the appointment or re-appointment of Directors. Moreover,
the committee will ensure that the Board of directors has
the appropriate balance of skills, experience and diversity
of perspectives necessary to enhance the effectiveness
of the Board and to maintain high standards of corporate
governance.

Board nomination and appointments will continue to be made
on merit basis based on its business needs from time to
time while taking into account diversity. Selection of board
candidates shall be based on a range of diversity perspectives
with reference to the Company’s business model and specific
needs, including but not limited to gender, race, language,
cultural background, educational background, industry
experience and professional experience.
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During the year, a total of 4 Nomination Committee meetings
were held. Details of the attendance of the Nomination
Committee meetings are as follows:

Name of Nomination Committee members

Attendance/Number of meetings

RELZEGKESESR
Mr. Choy Kwok Hung, Patrick’ BB ST A
Mr. Chung Koon Yan? SETE A S A2
Mr. Yue Man Yiu, Matthew? ROMBST A8
Ms. Kwok Yuen Lam, Sophia* SRk 2 4
Mr. William Keith Jacobsen?® HEHEAES
Ms. Chan Man Yi° PR G/ N HS
Ms. Kwong Ka Ki® Sl

1. Mr. Choy Kwok Hung, Patrick resigned on 7 February 2014.

2. Mr. Chung Koon Yan resigned on 18 January 2013.

3. Mr. Yue Man Yiu, Matthew resigned on 1 February 2013.

4. Ms. Kwok Yuen Lam, Sophia was removed on 22 January 2014.

5. Mr. William Keith Jacobsen and Ms. Chan Man Yi were appointed on 1

February 2013.
6. Ms. Kwong Ka Ki was appointed on 22 January 2014.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

The Company established the Remuneration Committee on
28 June 2005 with written terms of reference in compliance
with the Listing Rules, and currently consists of one executive
Director, namely Mr. Choi Wai King (chairperson of the
Remuneration Committee), two independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. William Keith Jacbosen and Ms. Kwong
Ka Ki.

The Remuneration Committee is mainly responsible for the
determination of the specific remuneration packages of all
executive Directors and senior management (including benefits
in kind, pension rights and compensation payments), making
recommendations to the Board on the matters relating to the
Company’s policy and structure for the remuneration of the
Directors and senior management, and on the establishment
of a formal and transparent procedure for developing policy on
such remuneration.

HE RS & FERE

3/4
1/1
2/2
4/4
2/2
1/2
0/0

BEIEEEN T INF AL REYE
EEREAEN-E-=F—A+/\BEHE
RBSEHEN T =F_F—HEHL -
TN =T —IF— B -+ BHER o
REAEEENREE NN -2 —=F"F—H
EE(T-

6. BISREA T N - FE A+ RERE -

o~ N~

EEME
RKARRZZEZETRF AT N\HKILE
WEZEe  WEREMRANETHBES
B BB - E2RTESEFELELE
(FNEZEEXTR) RMEBBILIFENTES
HEAELAMABEHZTARN -

FNEE ST EREEEMENTESR
SREBEZARHNES (BEEDH
o RS ENMEESRE)  RARAA
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During the year, a total of 7 Remuneration Committee meetings &
were held. Details of the attendance of the Remuneration 2

Committee meetings are as follows:

Name of Remuneration Committee members Attendance/Number of meetings
FHMEESKEES HE RS, GFRE
Mr. Chan Chi Hung' PR IR S 5/5
Mr. Chung Koon Yan? §E IR o A2 1/1
Mr. Yue Man Yiu, Matthew? RGBS A4S 2/2
Ms. Mak Man Yi, Jackie* BEELt 2/3
Ms. Kwok Yuen Lam, Sophia® SL Ik 2 15 77
Mr. William Keith Jacobsen® REHS LS 5/6
Mr. Choi Wai King’ BB AT 3/3

1. Mr. Chan Chi Hung resigned on 15 July 2013. 1. BREREFEN T —=F+A+HHBHE

2. Mr. Chung Koon Yan resigned on 18 January 2013. 2. RSN T —=F—A+/\HEHE

3. Mr. Yue Man Yiu, Matthew resigned on 1 February 2013. 3. RBEEN T —=F_F—RHEHL -

4. Ms. Mak Man Yi, Jackie resigned on 28 March 2013. 4. EPFELTN =T —=F=A=+/\AgHE -

5. Ms. Kwok Yuen Lam, Sophia was removed on 22 January 2014. 5. BHEMLZ TN —T—MF—A -+ HER -

6. Mr. William Keith Jacobsen was appointed on 1 February 2013. 6. REACER T =F_SRARZfE-

7. Mr. Choi Wai King was appointed on 3 May 2013 and subsequently /- ERRFEN-TZFRAAZARZEE K

appointed as the chairperson of the committee on 22 January 2014. BR-F-NF A+ -_HERMERZEE

FfE o

TEcHHESEAR AR
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The Audit Committee is mainly responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment, re-
appointment and removal of the external auditors and to
approve the remuneration and terms of engagement of the
external auditors, and any questions of resignation or dismissal
of such auditors; reviewing the interim and annual reports
and accounts of the Group; and overseeing the Company’s
financial reporting system and internal control procedures.
During the year under review, the remuneration paid/payable to
the Company’s auditor, BDO Limited, is set out below:

ZHARTE
FEZ IR

Audit services
Non-audit services

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established on 7 October 2002. The
Audit Committee currently consists of three independent non-
executive Directors, namely Ms. Kwong Ka Ki (chairperson
of the Audit Committee), Mr. William Keith Jacobsen and Ms.
Chan Man Yi.

The terms of reference adopted by the Audit Committee are
aligned with the code provisions set out in the CG Code.

The Audit Committee shall meet the external auditor to discuss
any area of concern during the audit or review. The Audit
Committee reviews the interim and annual reports before
submission to the Board. The Audit Committee focuses not
only on the impact of standards, but also on the Listing Rules
and the legal requirements in the review of the Company’s
interim and annual reports.

BB ET N &
ERZESIZRAMIIBEREMZE
T EBRrEBAEFTSRHEEBERR
1t BE AE SNEE AR BRAM 2 3 BN N BB AR R AR
AR E Bz Sz BB Rk 2 B 2 (EA
B BRASE R RFERE AR
B REBARARZHMHEHRSE XS MR
EEREF - REEFE  EN/EBHTA
REGBMEELGERRGMEBME
RABZMEHIIMT

Fee paid/payable
BN ER

HK$’000
THETT

265

265

BEREE"
ARAR-_ZEE_F+ALHNULEZE
BEg BERZESREHA=-RBIIFNT
EERREAL(ERZESLE)  EE
H oA A MR B/ MEAEM o

ERZEERMZBEEENGLXER
ST Rl P a2 <7 RIERSC o

mR
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REAAEHRRBR 2 EMNEREE -
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FHBERFRIETERIEN 2
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During the year, the Audit Committee held 2 meetings and
has reviewed the unaudited interim results and audited annual
results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2013
together with the auditor of the Company. In the opinion of the
Audit Committee, the preparation of such results complied with
the applicable accounting standards and the Listing Rules.

Details of the attendance of the Audit Committee meetings are
as follows:

Name of Audit Committee members

BERLEEKBEHES

TR BREESGRTTMAEE L&
RARBAZ ZEBMERNBE _—_T—=F
TZA=+t—"BLEFEAKREZ REEZ
THIREARKEREFRE - BREE
RN RERBIHRENTAERSTE
AR ETAR A

BRZBRRRILEHBLT

Attendance/Number of meetings
HERE, B RE

Mr. Yue Man Yiu, Matthew' R BT
Mr. Chung Shu Kun, Christopher’ ERIR 4
Mr. Chung Koon Yan? ERAE T2
Ms. Chan Kam Man? PR 87 32 9t A3
Mr. William Keith Jacobsen* EREHA &
Ms. Chan Man Yi* G e=ANER
Ms. Mak Man Yi, Jackie® BEEL LS
Ms. Kwong Ka Ki® B 2+
1. Mr. Yue Man Yiu, Matthew and Mr. Chung Shu Kun, Christopher
resigned on 1 February 2013.
2. Mr. Chung Koon Yan resigned on 18 January 2013.
3. Mr. Chan Kam Man was removed on 22 January 2014.
4. Mr. William Keith Jacobsen and Ms. Chan Man Yi were appointed on 1
February 2013.
5. Ms. Mak Man Yi, Jackie was appointed as member of Audit Committee
on 1 February 2013 and resigned subsequently on 28 March 2013.
6. Ms. Kwong Ka Ki was appointed on 22 January 2014.

COMPANY SECRETARY

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Company
Secretary has duly complied with the relevant professional
training requirement under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

VOTING BY POLL

Pursuant to Rule 13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, any vote
of shareholders at a general meeting must be taken by
poll except where the chairman, in good faith, decides to
allow a resolution which relates purely to a procedural or
administrative matter to be voted on by a show of hands.

1/2
2/2
2/2

1/2

1. RXBEEREHREEN_T—=F_HA—
HEHE -

2. BERAKEN T —=F—F+\REHE-

3. BREBIEEN T —NF—A -+ HIEER -

4. HEEAEMRBENMAN T —=F_F—
BERE-

5. BYBRRIN _E—=F_A-BHEZERST
BREEGRERABNR_ZE—=F=A=+N\

ARHE -
6.  EEMALR-T-ME— A=+ ABEE -
RNEME

RBEE-_ZT—=F+-_A=+—HIHF
B ARMECEZEET LEWREIZEI.29
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The Company commits to place shareholders’ interests
as top priority and protect their rights as provided in the
Articles. Shareholders can visit the Company’s website
(www.cflg.com.hk) to gain access to the Company’s up-to-
date information. They are entitled to be given due notice to
attend all the general meetings of the Company, vote all the
resolutions (except for those which shareholders may have
conflict of interest and are required to abstain from voting) and
raise questions to the management on the Company’s status
and development plans.

Shareholders as duly registered holders of the ordinary shares
of the Company (“Members”) are also entitled to requisition to
convene an extraordinary general meeting in accordance with
the Articles. Details of the requirements and procedures are as
follows:

(i) Any one or more Members holding not less than one-
tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying the
right of voting at general meetings of the Company may
send a written requisition to the Board or the Company
Secretary to convene a general meeting.

(if) The requisition must be duly signed by the requisitionist,
specifying the requisitionist’s name, contact details and
the number of ordinary shares of the Company that the
requisitionist is holding and the matters proposed to
be discussed and transacted in the general meeting.
The requisition must be deposited at the Company’s
principal place of business in Hong Kong at Room A-C,
3/F., Golden Sun Centre, 59 Bonham Strand West,
Sheung Wan, Hong Kong.

(i)  The Company will verify the requisition and upon
confirming that the requisition is proper and in order,
the Board will proceed with the necessary procedures
including the convening of a general meeting.

IR RAER
RAARMOKBREERNESL - WIRE
RARIZHMARHTHEZEZERN - RFRA
B & KN B B E (www.cflg.com.hk) SA BLS
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(iv)  The general meeting shall be held within two (2) months
after the deposit of the requisition.

If the Board does not within twenty-one (21) days from the
date of the deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene
a general meeting, the requisitionist himself may convene a
general meeting in the same manner.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company is committed to a policy of open and regular
communication and reasonable disclosure of information
to its shareholders so that they can exercise their rights
in an informed manner. Information about the Company is
disseminated to the shareholders through:

° delivery of interim and annual results and reports to all
shareholders;

° publication of announcements on interim and annual
results on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange, and issuance of other announcements
and shareholders’ circulars in accordance with the
continuing disclosure obligations under the Listing
Rules; and

o the general meeting of the Company is an effective
communication channel between the Board and
shareholders. As such, most of the Board members
attended the 2013 annual general meeting and other
extraordinary general meetings during the year to
provide shareholders with opportunities to understand
the latest development of the Group and raise questions.
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The 2013 annual general meeting was held on 29 May
2013 and there was one extraordinary general meeting held
subsequently on 22 January 2014. The attendance record of
the Directors at the general meetings is set out below:

Name of Directors

—E-=FRERBEFRER=_FT—=FHh
AZ+NABET7 ARAFEZENR T —N
F-AZFHZHABIT - AREFIRE -
BEERRERG ZHEREHINNOT

Attendance/Number of general meetings

EEHH HERE/ BERERE
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Choy Kwok Hung, Patrick’ B S A 1/2
Mr. Chan Chi Hung? PR ARG S A2 1/2
Mr. Choi Wai King?® BB A4S 1/2
Mr. John Yen Jong Ling* B RS A4 1/2
Non-executive Directors HNTEFE
Mr. Yang Nai Jiang® 15 JhiL S s -
Mr. Wang Qiang® FogstaEe 1/2
Mr. Tang Yiu Wing’ BOHR R ST A7 -
Independent Non-executive Directors BN TEF
Mr. Chung Koon Yan? $E IR o A8 -
Mr. Yue Man Yiu, Matthew? RGBS Ao -
Mr. Chung Shu Kun, Christopher® SEAGIAR Jp e =
Mr. Chan Kam Man® PeR 7 3 St o 1/2
Ms. Kwok Yuen Lam, Sophia® EI Gk S 1/2
Ms. Mak Man Yi, Jackie™ BHEL LT =
Mr. William Keith Jacobsen'" HEHEAEN 0/2
Ms. Chan Man Yi'" BREKZ/ A 0/2
Ms. Kwong Ka Ki” S et -
1. Mr. Choy Kwok Hung, Patrick resigned on 7 February 2014. 1. BRI AEN T —NF A HEHT -
2. Mr. Chan Chi Hung resigned on 15 July 2013. 2. PBREMSSEENR T —=F LA+ HHEITE -
3. Mr. Choi Wai King was appointed on 3 May 2013, 3. EEEREN T =FhA=A%ZE-
4. Mr. John Yen Jong Ling was appointed as non-executive director on 4. BPREER-_ZT—=F—A+/\BEZEA

10.
11.
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18 January 2013 and re-designated as executive Director on 3 June
2018.

Mr. Yang Nai Jiang was removed on 8 May 2013.

Mr. Wang Qiang, Mr. Chan Kam Man and Ms. Kwok Yuen Lam, Sophia
were removed on 22 January 2014.

Mr. Tang Yiu Wing and Ms. Kwong Ka Ki were appointed on 22
January 2014.

Mr. Chung Koon Yan resigned on 18 January 2013.

Mr. Yue Man Yiu, Matthew and Mr. Chung Shu Kun, Christopher
resigned on 1 February 2013.

Ms. Mak Man Yi, Jackie resigned on 28 March 2013.

Mr. William Keith Jacobsen and Ms. Chan Man Yi were appointed on 1
February 2013.
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During the year ended 31 December 2013, there were
no significant changes in the Company’s constitutional
documents during the year.

DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to prepare the
Company’s accounts for each financial period and to ensure
that the financial statements are in accordance with statutory
requirements and applicable accounting standards. The Board
also ensures the timely publication of the financial statements.
The Directors, having made appropriate enquiries, confirm
that they are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board as a whole is responsible for performing the
corporate governance duties including:

(@)  to develop and review the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance;

(b)  to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior
management;

()  to review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices in compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

(d)y  to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
directors; and

(e)  to review the Company’s compliance with the code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.
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INTERNAL CONTROL A 2B B

The Board has overall responsibility for maintaining a proper &= e 2HABEAEEHEIFZEERAZNRN
and effective system of internal control of the Group. HREE &I o

The internal control system includes safeguard of the interest R ELESYE 4| [E B FE(R (B AR B FE 28 L AN &2 [E
of shareholders and the Group’s assets. The Board has 2 &E - =S REHEE#BEES
delegated to management for the implementation of all EEETHMEBMAZ K ~ E&E -« BH#
relevant financial, operational, compliance controls and risk &I R EREERE - 2 T —=F1+ =
management function within a defined framework. Duringthe A=+—HItFE  EF2 B @l N30E
year ended 31 December 2013, the Board has conducted {2#|EURESHIE Y kRl - &=
a review of the system of internal control to ensure the @#EVLBFET— X LT IIE-
effectiveness and adequacy of the system. The Board shall

conduct such review at least once annually.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Choi Wai King, aged 50, obtained his bachelor’s
degree at Columbus University, has about 25 years of
experiences in securities trading and management, business
management, asset management and provision of investment
advisory worldwide including South East Asian countries,
the Middle East, China, Japan and Hong Kong. Mr. Choi
has demonstrated his strong business acumen in providing
investment advice to the top management of several asset
management companies based on researches and the
analyses (both qualitative and quantitative) he has applied to
select business sectors and stocks which have investment
potentials. He has thus been entrusted to manage and
take charge of the investment portfolios and has achieved
remarkable return consistently. Currently, Mr. Choi is also an
executive director of Opes Asia Development Limited (stock
code: 810).

Mr. Choi has entered into an appointment letter with the
Company with no specific term for appointment. In accordance
with the Articles, he is subject to retirement by rotation at least
once in every three years. The remuneration of Mr. Choi is
HK$600,000 per annum which is determined by the Board with
reference to his respective qualification and experiences, his
respective duties and responsibilities with the Company, the
Company’s performance and the prevailing market situation.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. Choi does not hold any other
position with the Company or its subsidiaries, nor has he
held any directorship in other listed public companies in the
past three years. He does not have any relationship with
other directors, senior management, substantial or controlling
shareholders of the Company.
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Mr. John Yen Jong Ling, aged 52, was appointed as a
non-executive Director of the Company on 18 January 2013
and re-designated as executive Director on 3 June 2013.
Mr. Yen holds a Master’'s degree in Business Administration
from State University of New York at Buffalo and a Master’s
degree in Science, from New York University. He also holds
the professional qualifications of CFA and FRM as well as the
professional licenses for Type 9 (Asset management) and Type
4 (Advising on securities) regulated activities under the SFO.
Currently, he is the founder and chief executive officer of Yuan
Asset Management Limited.

For the past more than 20 years, Mr. Yen has held various
senior positions with different financial institutions in New
York, Hong Kong and Taiwan. He had been a director of China
Merchants Securities (HK) Co., Limited from 2007 to 2011,
an executive director of AVANTA Investment (International)
Limited from 2006 to 2007, responsible for fund management
and investment advisory services. In 2004, he was a managing
director of Crosby Asset Management (Hong Kong) Limited
and was responsible for setting up a fund. Between 2001 and
2003, he was the president of Hwa Yu Securities Investment
Advisory Company and was responsible for promoting
investment advisory services and managing discretionary
accounts. Mr. Yen had also been an independent non-
executive director of First China Financial Network Holdings
Limited, a company listed on the Growth Enterprise Market
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (stock code:
8123) during the period from 2008 to 2010. With over 20 years
of exposures in investing in the international capital market,
Mr. Yen has vast experience in fund management including
mutual fund, pension fund, insurance investment portfolio and
management of institutional accounts. Currently, Mr. Yen is
also a director of a subsidiary of the Company.

Mr. Yen has entered into an appointment letter with the
Company with no specific term for appointment. In accordance
with the Articles, he is subject to retirement by rotation at
least once in every three years. The remuneration of Mr. Yen is
HK$600,000 per annum which is determined by the Board with
reference to his respective qualification and experiences, his
respective duties and responsibilities with the Company, the
Company’s performance and the prevailing market situation.
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Save as disclosed above, Mr. Yen does not hold any other
position with the Company or its subsidiaries, nor has he
held any directorship in other listed public companies in the
past three years. He does not have any relationship with
other directors, senior management, substantial or controlling
shareholders of the Company.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Tang Yiu Wing, aged 46, is a practising solicitor in Hong
Kong. He holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Laws, a Postgraduate
Certificate in Laws from the University of Hong Kong and a
Master’s Degree in Laws from the City University of Hong
Kong. He is a member of the Law Society of Hong Kong and
is admitted as a solicitor of the Supreme Court of England
and Wales and a barrister and solicitor of the Supreme Court
of Tasmania. Currently, Mr. Tang is an independent non-
executive director of Goldin Financial Holdings Limited, a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (stock code: 530). Mr. Tang is also an
alternate Director to Mr. John Yen Jong Ling, Mr. William Keith
Jacobsen and Ms. Chan Man Yi.

Mr. Tang has entered into an appointment letter with the
Company with no specific term for appointment. In accordance
with the Articles, Mr. Tang is subject to retirement at the
Company’s next annual general meeting after his appointment
and thereafter subject to retirement by rotation at least
once in every three years. The remuneration of Mr. Tang is
HK$360,000 per annum which is determined by the Board
with reference to his respective qualifications and experiences,
respective duties and responsibilities with the Company, the
Company'’s performance and the prevailing market situation.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. Tang does not hold any other
positions with the Company or its subsidiaries, nor has he held
any directorships in other listed public companies in the past
three years. Mr. Tang does not have any relationships with
other directors, senior management, substantial or controlling
shareholders of the Company.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. William Keith Jacobsen, aged 47, was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director, a member of the
Nomination Committee, the Remuneration Committee and
the Audit Committee of the Company on 1 February 2013. He
is the managing director of a licensed corporation to advise
on corporate finance matters. Mr. Jacobsen has more than
20 years of experience in corporate finance and business
development. He is an executive director of Auto ltalia
Holdings Limited (formerly known as Wo Kee Hong (Holdings)
Limited, stock code: 720) and is also an independent non-
executive director of Hycomm Wireless Limited (stock code:
499), Perception Digital Holdings Limited (stock code: 1822),
Sustainable Forest Holdings Limited (stock code: 723) and
abc Multiactive Limited (stock code: 8131). He was also an
independent non-executive director of King Stone Energy
Group Limited (stock code: 663) for the period from 26
September 2008 to 30 September 2011. He holds a Bachelor
of Law degree from the University of Hong Kong and a Master
of Business Administration degree from the University of British
Columbia, Canada.

Mr. Jacobsen has entered into an appointment letter with the
Company with no specific term for appointment. In accordance
with the Articles, he is subject to retirement by rotation at least
once in every three years. The remuneration of Mr. Jacobsen is
HK$120,000 per annum which is determined by the Board with
reference to his respective qualification and experiences, his
respective duties and responsibilities with the Company, the
Company’s performance and the prevailing market situation.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. Jacobsen does not hold any
other positions with the Company or its subsidiaries, nor has
he held any directorships in other listed public companies
in the past three years. Mr. Jacobsen does not have any
relationships with other directors, senior management,
substantial or controlling shareholders of the Company.
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Ms. Chan Man Yi, aged 49, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director, a member of the Nomination
Committee and the Audit Committee of the Company on
1 February 2013. She graduated from the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University with a Master’s degree in professional
accounting and has over 22 years of experience in pension
and provident fund industry. She is currently the company
secretary of Glory Mark Hi-Tech (Holdings) Limited, a company
listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (stock code: 8159). Ms. Chan is
a member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a fellow member of The Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants.

Ms. Chan has entered into an appointment letter with the
Company with no specific term for appointment. In accordance
with the Articles, she is subject to retirement by rotation at
least once in every three years. The remuneration of Ms. Chan
is HK$120,000 per annum which is determined by the Board
with reference to her respective qualification and experiences,
her respective duties and responsibilities with the Company,
the Company’s performance and the prevailing market
situation.

Ms. Chan does not hold any other positions with the Company
or its subsidiaries, nor has she held any directorships in other
listed public companies in the past three years. Ms. Chan
does not have any relationships with other directors, senior
management, substantial or controlling shareholders of the
Company.

Ms. Kwong Ka Ki, aged 33, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director, a member of
Remuneration Committee and chairperson of Nomination
Committee and Audit Committee on 22 January 2014. Ms.
Kwong holds a Bachelor of Arts (Hon) degree in Accounting
and Finance from The Leeds Metropolitan University. Ms.
Kwong is a member of The Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants. Ms. Kwong is currently an Audit Manager of
Union Alpha C.P.A. Limited. Ms. Kwong has over 12 years
of experience in auditing, tax, professional accounting and
internal control review of licensed corporations.
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Ms. Kwong has entered into an appointment letter with the
Company with no specific term for appointment. In accordance
with the Articles, Ms. Kwong is subject to retirement at the
Company’s next annual general meeting after her appointment
and thereafter subject to retirement by rotation at least once
in every three years. The remuneration of Ms. Kwong is
HK$200,000 per annum respectively which is determined by
the Board with reference to her respective qualifications and
experiences, respective duties and responsibilities with the
Company, the Company’s performance and the prevailing
market situation.

Ms. Kwong does not hold any other positions with
the Company or its subsidiaries, nor has she held any
directorships in other listed public companies in the past
three years. Ms. Kwong does not have any relationships with
other directors, senior management, substantial or controlling
shareholders of the Company.
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The Board is pleased to submit their report together with the
audited financial statements of China Financial Leasing Group
Limited (the “Company”) and of the consolidated financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
the “Group”) for the year 31 December 20183.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group is principally engaged in short to medium term
capital appreciation by investing in a diversified portfolio of
investments in listed securities in Hong Kong and overseas on
a general perspective as well as loan financing business and
the investment in the financial leasing business in the PRC.

Details of the principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out
in note 15 to the financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The Group’s loss for the year ended 31 December 2013 and
the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at that
date are set out in the financial statements on pages 45 to 109.

The Directors did not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2013.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company
during the year are set out in note 20 to the financial
statements.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

New Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted a new share option scheme (the
“SO Scheme”) on 12 January 2012. The purpose of the SO
Scheme is to enable the Group to grant options to eligible
participants as incentives or rewards for their contribution to
the Group. Eligible participants of the SO Scheme include,
without limitation, any persons who are employees, officers,
agents, consultants or representatives of the Group. The SO
Scheme became unconditional upon the Stock Exchange
granting on 13 January 2012 the approval of the listing of
and the permission to deal in the shares falling to be issued
pursuant to the exercise of any options to be granted under the
SO Scheme and, unless otherwise cancelled or amended, shall
remain in force for 10 years from the adoption date.

The maximum number of shares issuable under share options
to each eligible participant in the SO Scheme and the other
scheme (if any) in any 12-month’s period shall not exceed 1%
of the issued share capital of the Company for the time being.
Any further grant of share options to any eligible participant
in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’ approval in
a general meeting. The total number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all share options to be granted under
the SO Scheme and the other schemes (if any) must not in
aggregate exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in issue
(the “10% Limit”) as at 12 January 2012, being the date of
passing the resolution by the shareholders at the extraordinary
general meeting approving and adopting the New SO Scheme.
The Company may seek approval of its shareholders in
a general meeting to refresh the 10% Limit at any time in
accordance with the Listing Rules.
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The maximum number of shares which may be allotted and
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and
yet to be exercised under the SO Scheme and other schemes
(if any) shall not exceed 30% of the share capital of the
Company in issue from time to time. The making of an offer
to any Director, chief executive or substantial shareholder
of the Company, or any of their respective associates must
be approved by the independent non-executive Directors
(excluding any independent non-executive Director who or
whose associate is a proposed grantee of the share options).

In addition, any share options granted to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive Director of the
Company or any of their respective associates, in excess
of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any time
or with an aggregate value (based on the closing price of
the Company’s shares at the date of the offer) in excess of
HK$5,000,000, within any 12-month’s period, are subject to
the shareholders’ approval in a general meeting in accordance
with the Listing Rules.

Any offer may be accepted by an eligible participant in respect
of less than the number of shares which are offered provided
that such number is clearly stated in the duplicate letter
comprising acceptance of the offer duly signed by such eligible
participants and received by the Company together with a
remittance in favour of the Company of HK$1.00 (which shall
not be later than 21 days from the offer date). The exercise
price of the share options is determinable by the Directors,
but shall not be less than the highest of (i) the closing price of
the Company’s shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheet on the offer date; (ii) the average closing price
of the Company’s shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheets for the five trading days immediately
preceding the offer date; and (iii) the nominal value of the
Company’s shares.

On 4 March 2014, a total of 39,870,000 options were granted
to eligible participants at exercise price of HK$0.67 each.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Articles or the laws of the Cayman Islands, being the
jurisdiction in which the Company was incorporated, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata
basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during
the year ended 31 December 2012.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the
Group during the year are set out in note 21 to the financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Under the Companies Law (2007 Revision) of the Cayman
Islands, approximately HK$29,998,000 in the share premium
account and approximately HK$19,444,000 in the reserve
arising from capital reduction of the Company completed on
10 December 2012, is distributable to the shareholders of
the Company provided that immediately following the date on
which the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the Company
will be in a position to pay off its debts as and when they fall
due in the ordinary course of business. The share premium
account may also be distributed in the form of fully paid bonus
shares.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report were as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Choy Kwok Hung, Patrick’
Mr. Chan Chi Hung?

Mr. Choi Wai King®

Mr. John Yen Jong Ling*

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Yang Nai Jiang®

Mr. Wang Qiang®

Mr. Tang Yiu Wing”

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Chung Koon Yan®

Mr. Yue Man Yiu, Matthew®

Mr. Chung Shu Kun, Christopher®
Mr. Chan Kam Man®

Ms. Kwok Yuen Lam, Sophia®

Ms. Mak Man Yi, Jackie™

Mr. William Keith Jacobsen'

Ms. Chan Man Yi"

Ms. Kwong Ka Ki”

Mr. Choy Kwok Hung, Patrick resigned on 7 February 2014.

Mr. Chan Chi Hung resigned on 15 July 2013.

Mr. Choi Wai King was appointed on 3 May 2013.

Mr. John Yen Jong Ling was appointed as non-executive director on

18 January 2013 and re-designated as executive Director on 3 June

2013.

. Mr. Yang Nai Jiang was removed on 8 May 2013.

6. Mr. Wang Qiang, Mr. Chan Kam Man and Ms. Kwok Yuen Lam, Sophia
were removed on 22 January 2014.

7. Mr. Tang Yiu Wing and Ms. Kwong Ka Ki were appointed on 22
January 2014.

8. Mr. Chung Koon Yan resigned on 18 January 2013.

9. Mr. Yue Man Yiu, Matthew and Mr. Chung Shu Kun, Christopher
resigned on 1 February 2013.

10. Ms. Mak Man Yi, Jackie resigned on 28 March 2013.

11. Mr. William Keith Jacobsen and Ms. Chan Man Yi were appointed on 1

February 20183.
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Pursuant to Article 88(1) of the Articles, Mr. John Yen
Jong Ling will retire by rotation and, being eligible, offered
themselves for re-election at the 2014 AGM.

Pursuant to Article 87(3) of the Articles, Mr. Tang Yiu Wing and
Ms. Kwong Ka Ki are subject to re-election and, being eligible,
have offered themselves for re-election at the 2014 AGM.

INDEPENDENCE CONFIRMATION

The Company has received, from each of the independent
non-executive Directors of the Company, an annual
confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules. The Company considered that all of the
independent non-executive Directors are independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the 2014 AGM has a
service contract with the Group which is not determinable by
the Group within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No Director had a significant beneficial interest, either directly
or indirectly, in any contract of significance to the business of
the Group to which the Company or its subsidiary was a party
during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES

As at 31 December 2013, none of the Directors and chief
executives of the Company had any interests or short positions
in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company
or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) that was required to be recorded pursuant
to section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2013, other than a Director or chief
executive of the Company, persons who had the interests
or short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company as recorded in the register required to be kept under
section 336 of the SFO, is set out below.

Name of shareholder Position

Type of interest

e Bz
Zhu Hua Beneficial Long
Zhu Hua & ~H
Max Profit Limited Beneficial Long
Max Profit Limited & ~H

CONNECTED TRANSACTION

During the year, the Company has paid/payable HK$735,000
as investment management fee to Wealth Assets Management
Limited (“Wealth Assets”), the investment manager of the
Company for the provision by Wealth Assets of investment
management services to the Company. The above
transaction constitutes a de minimis continuing connected
transaction which is exempted from reporting, annual review,
announcement and independent shareholders’ approval
requirement under Rule 14A.33(3) of the Listing Rules.

Details of the above connected transaction is disclosed in note
25 to the financial statements.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, the
Company has maintained a sufficient public float as required
under the Listing Rules during the year and up to the date of
this report.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established in accordance with the
requirements of the CG Code of reviewing and providing super
vision over the Group’s financial reporting process and internal
controls.

As at the date of this report, the Audit Committee comprises
three independent non-executive Directors, Ms. Kwong Ka Ki
(as chairperson), Mr. William Keith Jacobsen and Ms. Chan
Man Yi.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the audited financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2013.

AUDITOR

The financial statements for the years ended 31 December
2011, 2012 and 2013 were audited by BDO Limited.

A resolution will be submitted to the 2014 AGM for the re-
appointment of BDO Limited as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Choi Wai King
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 28 March 2014
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|IBDO

EEE 1 +852 2218 8288
{85 : +852 2815 2239

Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

25t Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central
Hong Kong

BETHERI1585
k=251

www.bdo.com.hk

To the shareholders of China Financial Leasing Group Limited
TEHEMEEEEARAA

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
China Financial Leasing Group Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set out on pages
45 to 109, which comprise the consolidated and company
statements of financial position as at 31 December 2013,
and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit. This
report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with the
terms of our engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY (Continued)
We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made
by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31 December 2013 and of the Group’s loss and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Li Yin Fan

Practising Certificate Number P0O3113

Hong Kong, 28 March 2014
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
o P2 T WAL A

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_Z—=F1+-A=+—HILEFE

2013 2012
—E—=4F —T——4F

HK$’000 HK$’000
TAETT THETT

Revenue N 6 23 223

Net gain/(loss) on financial assets at #i@BiBzIE AL EHE

fair value through profit or loss ZIHBEEWZS
(E518) 558 3,000 (6,055)
3,023 (5,832)
Administrative expenses THF X (12,886) (17,030)
Loss before income tax At BB AIEE 8 (9,863) (22,862)
Income tax expense FTE X 9 - =
Loss for the year and total FABBREAQREEA
comprehensive income for the FARGEEHBALLLE
year attributable to the owners
of the Company 10 (9,863) (22,862)
HK cents HK cents
AL AL
Loss per share for loss ANBEBEAFERNEMN
attributable to the owners of BERERE
the Company during the year 11
- Basic - &K (2.22) (6.28)

— Diluted -8 (2.22) (6.28)




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31 December 2013
RZE—=F+=ZA=+—8

2013 2012
—E-=4F —T——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET AT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EENERE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BENEE 14 214 970
Available-for-sale financial assets FEMBEE 16 - 3,341
214 4,311
Current assets qufJ BE
Financial assets at fair value BREREATEAEZ
through profit or loss BB EE 17 34,430 39,367
Deposits and prepayments L& RIERRIA 18 138 1,374
Cash and cash equivalents ReMREEMBEER 19 8,641 8,300
43,209 49,041
Current liabilities REBAE
Other payables and accruals Bt RIBERETE R 370 436
Net current assets RBEEFH 42,839 48,605
Total assets less current BREERRBERE EE
liabilities/Net assets = 43,053 52,916
EQUITY R
Equity attributable to the owners 72 T #H A FELREZ
of the Company
Share capital A% AN 20 8,870 8,870
Reserves s 21 34,183 44,046
Total equity EEERS 43,053 52,916
Choi Wai King John Yen Jong Ling
BEEIE B
Director Director
5= 5=
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

RTINS

As at 31 December 2013
RZE—=F+=ZA=+—8

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Interests in subsidiaries
Available-for-sale financial assets

Current assets

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Deposits and prepayments

Amounts due from subsidiaries

Cash and cash equivalents

Current liabilities
Other payables and accruals

Net current assets

Total assets less current
liabilities/Net assets

EQUITY

Share capital
Reserves

Total equity

Choi Wai King
BEE
Director

B%

BEERERE

FRBEE

ME - BE k&
NI PN 5
HEMBHEE

REEE
FRBREATEAEZ
MBEE

®e RIANHIE

JE K BT /B8 2~ RISk IR
AekReFHFEEAR

nEaE
H I 50R M EET B H

REBEEFE

REERRBAEE EE
E

John Yen Jong Ling

B

Director

5=

14
15
16

17
18
15
19

20
21

2013
—E-=F

HK$’000
TR

2012
—E——4F
HK$’000
FHET

214 970

1 1

- 3,341

215 4,312
34,430 39,367
137 1,372
20 =
8,641 8,300
43,228 49,039
370 421
42,858 48,618
43,073 52,930
8,870 8,870
34,203 44,060
43,073 52,930




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_Z—=F1+-A=+—HILEFE

Capital
Share Share reduction  Accumulated
capital premium reserve losses Total
[ BRin B BB & 2 ER M@t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000
THT TET TET THET THT
(note 21(i))  (note 20(v))
(MzE21()  (F¥aE20(v))

At 1 January 2012 RZE——&—F—H 9,856 69,085 - (42,916) 36,025
Issue of ordinary shares BT @A (B E20(v))

(note 20(v)) 78,840 (37,551) - - 41,289
Share issue expenses BDEITRY = (1,536) - - (1,536)
Capital reduction (note 20(v)) AxZR Al (B &£20(v)) (79,826) = 19,444 60,382 -
Transactions with owners ~ EEFAZX 5 (986) (39,087) 19,444 60,382 39,753
Loss for the year and total FREERERNZE

comprehensive income WA B

for the year = = = (22,862) (22,862)
At 31 December 2012 and RZZ——&+_A

1 January 2013 =+—8k

—T-=%—-HA—H 8,870 29,998 19,444 (5,396) 52,916
Loss for the year and total  FREBEFAZE

comprehensive income WA

for the year - - - (9,863) (9,863)
At 31 December 2013 ~ R-ZE—-=£+=§

=== 8,870 29,998 19,444 (15,259) 43,053
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
A B EER

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_Z—=F1+-A=+—HILEFE

2013 2012
—E—=4F —T——4F
HK$’000

FETT

HK$’000
THT

Cash flows from operating activities
Loss before income tax
Adjustments for:
Depreciation
Bank interest income
Dividend income
Loss on disposal of available-for-sale
financial assets
Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Operating loss before working capital
changes
Decrease/(Increase) in financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss
Decrease in deposits and prepayments
(Decrease)/Increase in other payables
and accruals

Cash used in operations
Bank interest received
Dividend income received

Net cash used in operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Proceeds from disposal of
available-for-sale financial assets

Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment

RETE2HESRE
RETFAEHiAIEE
BLATIEE (EHFAE
e
|ITHEWA

ISR ON

HEREVBEEZER

HEWE  BEEREZ

&8

LEESHPH K EEE

BRESEATEAEZ

B EERD,(HEm)
Be RIBN IR
HAth FE A 3R M BT &
R4,/ 1

EBPRIRE
EHERTTHIE
E U B A

BB THE 2 F R
REFHZRERE
BEME  BERRE
HERFEVBEEMSHA

HEVE - BEEREMS

/TA KIE

(9,863) (22,862)
128 254
(3) (1)
(20) (222)
1,341 -
178 31
(8,239) (22,800)
4,937 (20,006)
1,236 410
(66) 108
(2,132) (42,288)
3 1
20 222
(2,109) (42,065)
- (1,078)
2,000 -
450 203




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
A B EER

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_Z—=F1+-A=+—HILEFE

2013 2012
—T-=F —ET—_F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHETT
Net cash generated from/(used in) RE GBI AT/ (BT )3 %
investing activities JFEE 2,450 (875)

Cash flows from financing activities BETEZHEESRE

Proceeds from issue of shares BE1TRR D FT 1S 50R - 41,289
Share issue expenses B EEITHRZ - (1,536)
Net cash generated from financing & LB ELR 2 FE

activities - 39,753
Net increase/(decrease) in cash HeERRESEHEEFE

and cash equivalents /R ) SR8 341 (3,187)
Cash and cash equivalents at R—A—BAZzBRERES

1 January £EEH 8,300 11,487
Cash and cash equivalents at R+ZA=+—HzHEER

31 December ReEEER 8,641 8,300
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 25 A P i

For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE-T-=F+-A=+—ALFE

1.

GENERAL INFORMATION

China Financial Leasing Group Limited (the “Company”)
was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted
company with limited liability under the Companies Law
(2007 Revision) of the Cayman Islands. The address of
its registered office and principal place of business are
located at Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box
2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands and
Unit A-C, 3/F., Golden Sun Centre, 59-67 Bonham
Strand West, Sheung Wan, Hong Kong respectively.
The Company’s shares are listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group”) are principally engaged in short to
medium term capital appreciation by investing in a
diversified portfolio of investments in listed and unlisted
securities in Hong Kong and overseas on a general
perspective.

The financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2013 were approved for issue by the
Board of Directors on 28 March 2014.

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(@) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective

on 1 January 2013

Amendments to HKAS 1 (Revised)
Income

BB ERNE1IHREBET A (KIEE])

Amendments to HKFRS 7

AN BREENETRET A

HKFRS 10

BB HmEERFE 1057

HKFRS 12

ERVBRE

HKFRS 13

BAEM B EERE135%

N

R 1258

ATt &

—REH
TEeRESEEERAR (AR
AREREHSARNE(ZETE
FIEFTR)RFA SRS MK A&
HEZERRDA o KRR Z M
FRAFELERME ZIN 5 R
& Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive,
P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman
KY1-1111, Cayman Islands & & /&
FRX B A#ES9-675 e HEBF L
BEA-CE - ARAIRNEBRBHE
RGMARAR([HERZPFT]) ER &
M e

ARm R EWMB AR (5H[AE
BDEIBEREEBRERBTENE
She ERRIFEMESRT 2 Z T
BG  ERPREHEANE-

BHe—_f—=F+-_A=+—HI
FEZUMERERR _-_Z—NFE=A
“t+NBEEETHETE -

BMBEBUBREERNTE

BT BHREED )

(a) W EETEBUBE
ERA-R-B-=F—A-
ES

Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive

5 EMEEWERIEE

Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
BV BEERMGER

Consolidated Financial Statements

fRE g

Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities
REME SR 2 KR

Fair Value Measurement




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S s i Mk

For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE-T-=F+-A=+—ALFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(Continued)
(@) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective
on 1 January 2013 (Continued)

Except as explained below, the adoption of
these new/revised standards and interpretations
has no material impact on the Group’s financial
statements.

Amendments to HKAS 1 (Revised) — Presentation
of Items of Other Comprehensive Income

The amendments to HKAS 1 (Revised) require
the Group to separate items presented in other
comprehensive income into those that may
be reclassified to profit and loss in the future
and those that may not. Tax on items of other
comprehensive income is allocated and disclosed
on the same basis.

The Group has adopted the amendments
retrospectively for the financial year ended 31
December 2013. Items of other comprehensive
income that may and may not be reclassified to
profit and loss in the future have been presented
separately in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
The comparative information has been restated
to comply with the amendments. As the
amendments affect presentation only, there are
no effects on the Group’s financial position or
performance.

‘ China Financial Leasing Group Limited ‘ Annual Report 2013
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 25 A P i

For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE-T-=F+-A=+—ALFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2.
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

RAEREMBRELEN(E
EMBREEA ] (F)

(Continued)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective

The following new/revised HKFRSs, potentially
relevant to the Group’s financial statement, have
been issued, but are not yet effective and have not
been early adopted by the Group.

Amendments to HKAS 32
BB ERIEI2RIET A
HKFRS 9
ERVBREERIENR
HKFRSs (Amendments)
BAEMBREENETTA)
HKFRSs (Amendments)
RN BHREENEETA)

BT A

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2014

—E——%F

(b)

BRI RERZHET &
BT BB B REER
THIA e AR B SR KA
R RERT BB
ERERE DB - R ARER
AR EBIRF IR -

Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities’
HHM B EERMBAE

Financial Instruments

Annual Improvements 2010-2012 Cycle®
—E-TFEE T _FRNFEERHES
Annual Improvements 2011-2013 Cycle?
= — = F A HAR FE B2

' R-ZE-—MFE—-A—HzZ
& BAsA RS E HAR A 2K

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2 WN_ZE—PFE+A B2
2014 1& G oA B 6 & HRRE A 3
s Effective for annual periods beginning, or transactions ° WN_ZE—PFE+A B2
occurring, on or after 1 July 2014 Gk s A
RGHEM

The directors anticipate that all of the
pronouncements will be adopted in the Group’s
accounting policy for the first period beginning
after the effective date of the pronouncements.
Information on new and amended HKFRSs that
are expected to have impact on the Group’s
accounting policies is provided below. The
directors are currently assessing the impact of
other new and amended HKFRSs upon initial
application but are not yet in a position to state
whether they would have material financial impact
on the Group’s financial statement.

BB AEERBREER
EAERBHMR BEASRES
ABRTERATBEARBRE °
ARG Y ARBE ST
RBZENHE LZEFTRA
MBRELEMONEHRERNT
X o EERENEBEREMAE
M E] REERT BB MRS
Rz E B SIREER
ZEEAR DT GHAEER
BRENERZEBHE® °

WHEEEARAT




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S s i Mk

For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE-T-=F+-A=+—ALFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective (Continued)
Amendments to HKAS 32 — Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities

The amendments clarify the offsetting
requirements by adding appliance guidance to
HKAS 32 which clarifies when an entity “currently
has a legally enforceable right to set off” and when
a gross settlement mechanism is considered
equivalent to net settlement.

HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments

Under HKFRS 9, financial assets are classified
into financial assets measured at fair value or at
amortised cost depending on the entity’s business
model for managing the financial assets and
the contractual cash flow characteristics of the
financial assets. Fair value gains or losses will be
recognised in profit or loss except for those non-
trade equity investments, which the entity will have
a choice to recognise the gains and losses in other
comprehensive income. HKFRS 9 carries forward
the recognition, classification and measurement
requirements for financial liabilities from HKAS 39,
except for financial liabilities that are designated at
fair value through profit or loss, where the amount
of change in fair value attributable to change in
credit risk of that liability is recognised in other
comprehensive income unless that would create
or enlarge an accounting mismatch. In addition,
HKFRS 9 retains the requirements in HKAS 39
for derecognition of financial assets and financial
liabilities.

2. RPWERBMBRE

ZR([&

EMBREEA ] (F)

(b)

OB R ERZHET &
BRI E B KR ELER (F)
BB BT ERIE32 55T K-
R B EERMEAE
ﬁf‘gﬂk? BAYEAGFER
28 325% hN 2% FE AR 45 ol BB
BHRIE 2T - %IESIHE
B[ BRALE LRSI
ﬁ%f'JDATfﬁ%JZE%FEJ LA J 48
B I R ZRINF
%E%ZZE-;FEW’EHJ'/&% °

EI ooy

BRUBHRE
BIA

REEBMBEREENFEQ
5 M EESBIERAFE
HEEERAGTEZHBEE
HEORNBERERNBEEL
EBBRAMMBEESHRE
e - AFERaSERE
BmAER - ETBEEZEIRE
BRERE  MEEKEE
REMEEEERERER - &
BB REERNFIRERE
*D++E'J%895ﬁlﬁTﬁﬁi‘“

B R
EEZTJEEL N /\*E&E-I—E%E
SR A TES

BB ES
ZEMXE\EHM\ : ﬁﬁféﬁﬁf%

Am‘@)%\@lz NHEESE

AR E b 2 E SR - BRIE
"F_’%&?EKE At #E BCE R A
1ERlER - RO - BAEVBRE
EHFIRRE T B GFH LR
FIVR|RILERBHEER
M BEZHE -

ERFE 9T — BT

+N+E

‘ China Financial Leasing Group Limited ‘ Annual Report 2013



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S s i Mk

For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE-T-=F+-A=+—ALFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

3.1

3.2

3.3

Statement of compliance

The financial statements on pages 45 to 109 have
been prepared in accordance with all applicable
HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASs”) and Interpretations (hereinafter
collectively referred to as the “HKFRSs”) and the
disclosure requirements of Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. In addition, the financial statements
include applicable disclosures required by the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”).

The significant accounting policies that have
been used in the preparation of these financial
statements are summarised below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years
presented unless otherwise stated. The adoption
of new or amended HKFRSs and the impacts on
the financial statements, if any, are disclosed in
note 2.

Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments, which are stated at fair value as
explained in the accounting policies set out below.

It should be noted that accounting estimates
and assumptions are used in preparation of the
financial statements. Although these estimates
are based on management’s best knowledge and
judgment of current events and actions, actual
results may ultimately differ from those estimates.
The areas involving a higher degree of judgment
or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the financial
statements are disclosed in note 5.

Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$”), which is also the functional
currency of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S s i Mk

For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE-T-=F+-A=+—ALFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4.

4.1

4.2

Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements comprise
the financial statements of the Company and
its subsidiaries (see 4.2 below) made up to
31 December each year.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised
gains and losses on transactions between
group companies are eliminated in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. Where
unrealised losses on intra-group assets sales are
reversed on consolidation, the underlying asset
is also tested for impairment from the Group’s
perspective. Amounts reported in the financial
statements of subsidiaries have been adjusted
where necessary to ensure consistency with the
accounting policies adopted by the Group.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the
Company is able to exercise control. The
Company controls an investee if all three of the
following elements are present: power over the
investee, exposure, or rights, to variable returns
from the investee, and the ability to use its
power to affect those variable returns. Control is
reassessed whenever facts and circumstances
indicate that there may be a change in any of
these elements of control.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S s i Mk

For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE-T-=F+-A=+—ALFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.2

4.3

Subsidiaries (Continued)

In consolidated financial statements, acquisition
of subsidiaries (other than those under common
control) is accounted for by applying the
acquisition method. This involves the estimation
at fair value of all identifiable assets and liabilities,
including contingent liabilities of the subsidiary,
at the acquisition date, regardless of whether
or not they were recorded in the financial
statements of the subsidiary prior to acquisition.
On initial recognition, the assets and liabilities of
the subsidiary are included in the consolidated
statement of financial position at their fair values,
which are also used as the bases for subsequent
measurement in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policies.

In the Company’s statement of financial
position, subsidiaries are carried at cost less any
impairment loss unless the subsidiary is held for
sale or included in a disposal group. The results
of the subsidiaries are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividends received and
receivable at the reporting date. All dividends
whether received out of the investee’s pre or
post-acquisition profits are recognised in the
Company'’s profit or loss.

Foreign currency translation

In the individual financial statements of
the consolidated entities, foreign currency
transactions are translated into the functional
currency of the individual entity using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. At the reporting date, monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange
rates ruling at that date. Foreign exchange gains
and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the reporting date
retranslation of monetary assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE-T-=F+-A=+—ALFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.3

4.4

Foreign currency translation (Continued)
Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair
value was determined and are reported as part
of the fair value gain or loss. Non-monetary items
that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are not retranslated.

In the consolidated financial statements,
all individual financial statements of foreign
operations, originally presented in a currency
different from the Group’s presentation currency,
have been converted into HK$. Assets and
liabilities have been translated into HK$ at the
closing rates at the reporting date. Income
and expenses have been converted into HK$
at the exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates, or at the average rates over the reporting
period provided that the exchange rates do not
fluctuate significantly. Any differences arising
from this procedure have been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in the translation reserve in equity.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that
the economic benefits will flow to the Group and
when the revenue can be measured reliably on the
following basis:

(i) interest income is recognised on a time-
proportion basis using the effective interest
method; and

(ii) dividend income is recognised when the
right to receive payment is established.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE-T-=F+-A=+—ALFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.5

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at
acquisition cost less accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is
provided to write off the cost less their residual
values over their estimated useful lives, using the
straight-line method, at the following rates per
annum:

Motor vehicles
Furniture and office equipment

4 years
4 years

The assets’ residual values, depreciation methods
and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at each reporting date.

The gain or loss arising on retirement or disposal
is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset
and is recognised in profit or loss.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the
item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item
can be measured reliably. All other cost, such as
repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or
loss during the financial period in which they are
incurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE-T-=F+-A=+—ALFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.6

Impairment of non-financial assets

Property, plant and equipment, prepayments and
interests in subsidiaries are subject to impairment
testing.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value,
reflecting market conditions less costs to sell,
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessment of time
value of money and the risk specific to the asset.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, where
an asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent from those from other assets,
the recoverable amount is determined for the
smallest group of assets that generate cash
inflows independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).
As a result, some assets are tested individually
for impairment and some are tested at cash-
generating unit level.

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the asset’s recoverable amount and
only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined, net of depreciation or
amortisation, if no impairment loss had been
recognised.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.7

4.8

Leases

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a
series of transactions, is or contains a lease if the
Group determines that the arrangement conveys
a right to use a specific asset or assets for an
agreed period of time in return for a payment or
a series of payments. Such a determination is
made based on an evaluation of the substance of
the arrangement and is regardless of whether the
arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.

Operating lease charges as the lessee

Where the Group has the right to use the assets
held under operating leases, payments made
under the leases are charged to profit or loss on
a straight-line method over the lease term except
where an alternative basis is more representative
of the time pattern of benefits to be derived from
the leased assets. Lease incentives received
are recognised in profit or loss as an integral
part of the aggregate net lease payment made.
Contingent rental are charged to the profit or
loss in the accounting period in which they are
incurred.

Financial assets

The Group’s accounting policies for financial
assets other than interests in subsidiaries are set
out below.

The Group’s financial assets include available-
for-sale financial assets, financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss and cash and
cash equivalents. Management determines
the classification of its financial assets at initial
recognition depending on the purpose for which
the financial assets were acquired and where
allowed and appropriate, re-evaluates this

designation at every reporting date.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 25 A P i

For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE-T-=F+-A=+—ALFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. =EEBE(E)
(Continued)
4.8 Financial assets (Continued) 4.8 HBEEE)

All financial assets are recognised when, and
only when, the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. Regular
way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on trade date. When financial assets
are recognised initially, they are measured at fair
value, plus, in the case of investments not at fair
value through profit or loss, directly attributable
transaction costs.

Derecognition of financial assets occurs when the
rights to receive cash flows from the investments
expire or are transferred and substantially all of
the risks and rewards of ownership have been
transferred.

At each reporting date, financial assets are
reviewed to assess whether there is objective
evidence of impairment. If any such evidence
exists, impairment loss is determined and
recognised based on the classification of the
financial asset.

(i) Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss include financial assets held for
trading and financial assets designated
upon initial recognition as at fair value
through profit or loss.
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Financial assets are classified as held for W EERB BN
trading if they are acquired for the purpose AREHAHE BB

of selling in the near term. Derivatives,
including separated embedded derivatives
are also classified as held for trading
unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments or financial guarantee
contracts.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S s i Mk

For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE-T-=F+-A=+—ALFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.8 Financial assets (Continued)

U]

(i)

(i)

Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss (Continued)

Subsequent to initial recognition, the
financial assets included in this category are
measured at fair value with changes in fair
value recognised in profit or loss. Fair value
is determined by reference to active market
transactions or using a valuation technique
where no active market exists. Fair value
gain or loss does not include any dividend
or interest earned on these financial assets.
Dividend and interest income is recognised
in accordance with the Group’s accounting
policies in note 4.4 to these financial
statements.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an
active market. Loans and receivables are
subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less
any impairment losses. Amortised cost is
calculated taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and includes
fees that are an integral part of the effective
interest rate and transaction cost.

Available-for-sale financial assets

These assets are non-derivative financial
assets that are designated as available-for-
sale or are not included in other categories
of financial assets. Subsequent to initial
recognition, these assets are carried at fair
value with changes in fair value recognised
in other comprehensive income, except for
impairment losses and foreign exchange
gains and losses on monetary instruments,
which are recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 25 A P i

For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE-T-=F+-A=+—ALFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. =EEBE(E)
(Continued)
4.8 Financial assets (Continued) 4.8 HBEEE)

(iii)  Available-for-sale financial assets (Continued)
For available-for-sale equity investments
that do not have a quoted market price in an
active market and whose fair value cannot
be reliably measured and derivatives that
are linked to and must be settled by delivery
of such unquoted equity instruments, they
are measured at cost less any identified
impairment losses.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses, at the end of each reporting
period, whether there is any objective evidence
that financial asset is impaired. Financial asset
is impaired if there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events
that has occurred after the initial recognition
of the asset and that event has an impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the financial
asset that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of
impairment may include:

significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in interest or principal
payments;

- granting concession to a debtor because of
debtor’s financial difficulty;

- it becoming probable that the debtor
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S s i Mk

For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE-T-=F+-A=+—ALFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.8

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Loss events in respect of a group of financial
assets include observable data indicating that
there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows from the group of financial
assets. Such observable data includes but not
limited to adverse changes in the payment status
of debtors in the group and, national or local
economic conditions that correlate with defaults
on the assets in the group.

If any such evidence exists, the impairment loss is
measured and recognised as follows:

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment
loss on loans and receivables carried at amortised
cost has been incurred, the amount of the
loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition). The amount of the
loss is recognised in profit or loss of the period in
which the impairment occurs.

If, in subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed to
the extent that it does not result in a carrying
amount of the financial asset exceeding what
the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised at the date the
impairment is reversed. The amount of the reversal
is recognised in profit or loss of the period in which
the reversal occurs.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S s i Mk

For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE-T-=F+-A=+—ALFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.8 Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Available-for-sale financial assets
When a decline in the fair value of an available-
for-sale financial asset has been recognised
directly in equity and there is objective evidence
that the asset is impaired, an amount is removed
from equity and recognised in the profit or loss as
impairment loss. That amount is measured as the
difference between the asset’s acquisition cost
(net of any principal repayment and amortisation)
and current fair value, less any impairment loss on
that asset previously recognised in the profit or
loss.

Reversals in respect of investment in equity
instruments classified as available-for-sale are not
recognised in the profit or loss. The subsequent
increase in fair value is recognised directly
in other comprehensive income. Impairment
losses in respect of debt securities are reversed
if the subsequent increase in fair value can be
objectively related to an event occurring after
the impairment loss was recognised. Reversal
of impairment losses in such circumstances are
recognised in the profit or loss.

For available-for-sale equity investment that is
carried at cost, the amount of impairment loss is
measured as the difference between the carrying
amount of the asset and the present value of
estimated future cash flows discounted at the
current market rate of return for a similar financial
asset. Such impairment loss is not reversed.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S s i Mk

For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE-T-=F+-A=+—ALFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.9

Accounting for income taxes
Income tax comprises current and deferred tax.

Current income tax assets and/or liabilities
comprise those obligations to, or claims from,
fiscal authorities relating to the current or prior
reporting period, that are unpaid at the reporting
date. They are calculated according to the tax
rates and tax laws applicable to the fiscal periods
to which they relate, based on the taxable profit
for the year. All changes to current tax assets or
liabilities are recognised as a component of tax
expense in profit or loss.

Deferred tax is calculated using the liability
method on temporary differences at the reporting
date between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities in the financial statements and their
respective tax bases. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised
for all deductible temporary differences, tax losses
available to be carried forward as well as other
unused tax credits, to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit, including existing taxable
temporary differences, will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences,
unused tax losses and unused tax credits can be
utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises
from initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither taxable nor
accounting profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S s i Mk

For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE-T-=F+-A=+—ALFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.9

Accounting for income taxes (Continued)
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary differences
and it is probable that the temporary differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting,
at tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period the liability is settled or the asset realised,
provided they are enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date.

Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities
are recognised in profit or loss, or in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity if they
relate to items that are charged or credited to
other comprehensive income or directly to equity.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are
presented in net if, and only if,

(@)  the Group has the legally enforceable right
to set off the recognised amounts; and

(b)  intends either to settle on a net basis, or
to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 25 A P i

For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE-T-=F+-A=+—ALFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. =EEBE(E)
(Continued) - N N
4.9 Accounting for income taxes (Continued) 4.9 FEBzasEE(H)

The Group presents deferred tax assets and
deferred tax liabilities in net if, and only if,

(a) the entity has a legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities; and

(b)  the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority on either:

(i) the same taxable entity; or
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(i)  different taxable entities which (ii) T\EJFEEE%*@E
intend either to settle current tax B ﬁﬁﬁ?}rfg\ﬁ%
liabilities and assets on a net basis, AEEEMSE
or to realise the assets and settle S B AR AT
the liabilities simultaneously, in each RIEBENEE
future period in which significant 2 & EA KA
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or fﬁz%r‘i‘%%ﬁ,ﬁﬁ
assets are expected to be settled or ZHBRER R R
recovered. BE  SFRE

REENRFESR
4.10 Cash and cash equivalents 410 BHERALZEHEHER

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at banks
and in hand, demand deposits and short term
highly liquid investments with original maturities of
three months or less that are readily convertible

Be kReFERE BHEIRT
RFBEBRE  JERFRARR
HEABR A=A A NI ATRE
RERRDHNBE B AE
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subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. MIRE -
4.11 Share capital 411 BKZAK

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Share
capital is determined using the nominal value of
shares that have been issued.

Any transaction costs associated with the issue of
shares are deducted from share premium (net of
any related income tax benefits) to the extent that
they are incremental costs directly attributable to
the equity transaction.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 25 A P i

For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE-T-=F+-A=+—ALFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

412 Retirement benefit costs and short term
employee benefits

(1)

Defined contribution plan

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement
benefits scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance, for all of its employees in Hong
Kong. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are charged to profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the
rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of
the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees
when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

A defined contribution plan is a pension
plan under which the Group pays fixed
contributions into a separate entity.
The Group has no legal or constructive
obligations to pay further contributions after
payment of the fixed contribution.

The contributions recognised in respect of
defined contribution plans are expensed as
they fall due. Liabilities and assets may be
recognised if underpayment or prepayment
has occurred and are included in current
liabilities or current assets as they are
normally of a short-term nature.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 25 A P i

For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE-T-=F+-A=+—ALFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. FE=:BE(E)
(Continued)
4.12 Retirement benefit costs and short term 412 BRURBEAHAREHESEF

employee benefits (Continued) (%)

(i) Short term employee benefits (i)  RHESEF
Employee entitlements to annual leave are EERIZAZFRNR
recognised when they accrue to employees. AT EERER - FAE
A provision is made for the estimated BREEHE B HRIR
liability for annual leave as a result of HREMAIZEE 2FR
services rendered by employees up to the ZIEETREE TUR
reporting date. 1o
Non-accumulating compensated absences T RE 2B HBH
such as sick leave and maternity leave are (wm B RER) RIRE
not recognised until the time of leave. 7 T OARERR ©

4.13 Financial liabilities 413 B AE

The Group’s financial liabilities include other
payables and accruals.

Financial liabilities are recognised when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument. All interest related charges are
recognised as an expense in profit or loss.

A financial liability is derecognised when the
obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires.

Where an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange
or modification is treated as a derecognition
of the original liability and the recognition of a
new liability, and the difference in the respective
carrying amount is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are recognised initially at
their fair value and subsequently measured
at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE-T-=F+-A=+—ALFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

414 Provisions, contingent liabilities and
contingent assets
Provisions are recognised when the Group has
a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, and it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the
amount of the obligation can be made. Where
the time value of money is material, provisions
are stated at the present value of the expenditure
expected to settle the obligation.

All provisions are reviewed at each reporting date
and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the amount
cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future uncertain
events not wholly within the control of the group
are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.

4.15 Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segments and
prepares segment information based on the
regular internal financial information reported
to the executive directors for their decisions
about resources allocation to the Group’s
business components and for their review of the
performance of those components. The business
components in the internal financial information
reported to the executive directors are determined
following the Group’s major operations.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE-T-=F+-A=+—ALFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.15

4.16

Segment reporting (Continued)
The Group has identified one reportable segment:

- investment in listed and unlisted securities
with revenue of dividend income received
for the securities;

The measurement policies the Group uses for
reporting segment results under HKFRS 8 are the
same as those used in its financial statements.

Corporate assets which are not directly
attributable to the business activities of any
operating segment are not allocated to a
segment, which primarily applies to the Group’s
headquarter.

Segment liabilities exclude corporate liabilities
which are not directly attributable to the business
activities of any operating segment and are not
allocated to a segment, which primarily applies to
the Group’s headquarter.

Related parties
For the purposes of these financial statements, a

person or a close member of that person’s family
is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(ii) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of key management personnel
of the Group or the Company’s parent.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 25 A P i

For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE-T-=F+-A=+—ALFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. =ESTBER(E)

(Continued)
4.16 Related parties (Continued) 416 BAEALT(HE)

An entity is related to the Group if any of the @A TIER - ZERER

following conditions apply: REBERNEEREBH

(i The entity and the Group are members of (i) uxéﬁfﬁzﬁ‘ilﬁﬂf
the same group (which means that each SBECKE(AISER
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is Al - WE’&E&E%W
related to the others). B AR EARRREE)

(i)  One entity is an associate or joint venture (i) —EERAES—EBZ
of the other entity (or an associate or joint /NS A= % (=S
venture of a member of a group of which the (IRE—KBKEZ
other entity is a member). BtE AR AEERE

mZzs— BB R%ZEE
B o

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same (i) MEERBEAERE=
third party. AZEERE -

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity vy —EEERE=FER
and the other entity is an associate of the ZEETEMS —EE
third entity. REBE=FZBERT] -

(v} The entity is a post-employment benefit v) ZEBAASENHER
plan for the benefit of the employees of the SEEAEERZESR
Group or an entity related to the Group. B 2 B IR AR

FMEtEl -

(v The entity is controlled or jointly controlled vi) ZEBX@MATATL
by a person identified in (a). 12 i ok L R I -

(vi) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant (i)  REOPFREHEERS
influence over the entity or is a member of BEAFEIZATLT  HE
key management personnel of the entity (or ER(KERBZEAA)
of a parent of the entity). BREBABZKE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 25 A P i

For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE-T-=F+-A=+—ALFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. TESTBEK(E)
(Continued)
4.16 Related parties (Continued) 4.16 EBEEAL (&)

Close members of the family of a person are
those family members who may be expected to
influence, or be influenced by, that person in their

K- ALTERRBKEETAM
AREZATHERETER
INEERIZALHEZR

dealings with the entity and include: HREKE - WBIE
0) that person’s children and spouse or () ZHAANTZFRRREE
domestic partner; KREBH

(ii) children of that person’s spouse or

(i) FEBALZEMBHFE

domestic partner; and BHIZTFRZ R
(i)  dependents of that person or that person’s (i) ZmBALTEHZEBEALZ
spouse or domestic partner. B REEFISE
A o
CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES 5. EES:H{4hitRHE

AND JUDGMENTS

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal to the related
actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year are discussed below.

EErRAFRBEAEERLEME
EREETHE  BERBEHEBR
THHEFEMHELGEME -

AR EU AL G RER - B
£BE - FEHORIEIHRL R
EMZERERER - BEARR
I REERAEEEENT @
B 75 4F 1R B A B B 15 3 R R
BRI -




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S s i Mk

For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE-T-=F+-A=+—ALFE

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGMENTS (Continued)

(i) Impairment of investment in equity instruments
The investment in the shares of a listed company
has been suspended of trading and will remain
suspended until further notice. The directors of the
Company estimate that no impairment of investment
in the equity instruments is expected based on the
current information. Significant judgment is required
in determining if any impairment of investment
in equity instruments. In making this judgement,
the directors evaluate, among other factors, the
historical share price movements, the reason and the
duration of suspension of trading of the shares.

‘ China Financial Leasing Group Limited ‘ Annual Report 2013
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 25 A P i

For the year ended 31 December 2013

HE—

6.

F-=Ft-A=t+-ALEE

REVENUE

Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, recognised
during the year is as follows:

Bank interest income SRITHI B WA
Dividend income & B4 A

The results arising from the fair value change of
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
shown separately in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income under the line of “Net gain/(loss)
on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss”.
The gross proceeds from trading of securities for the
year amounted to approximately HK$67,758,000 (2012:
HK$49,804,000).

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group has identified its operating segments and
prepared segment information based on the regular
internal financial information reported to the Group’s
executive directors for their decisions about resources
allocation to the Group’s business components and
review of these components’ performance.

For the years ended 31 December 2012 and 31
December 2013, the Group has identified only one
segment and the sole business of this segment is
investment in listed and unlisted securities. No separate
analysis of segment information by business segment is
presented.

The Group’s revenue from external customers and
its non-current assets by geographical areas are not
presented as the geographical segments other than
Hong Kong are less than 10% of the aggregate amount
of all segments.

KA
FANERZAEBRA (A EER
CEERBIWNT

2012

— == _ZEE
HK$’000
TETT

HK$’000
TAETT

3 1
20 222
23 223

FEREREATFTEFECUBEE
MAFEEHMEERNEEEE
Wk [ BRBRERATETEY
MEERZ(BR)FEIETSE
VAR AFEEERFMENIA
HREB 4 567,758,000 T (—F—=
F 1 49,804,000/ 7T ) °

7 EBEH
AEBEERBELZEDE - RRE
AEEATESEREHMMEARE
EXBOHZERDELFEZSE
7 BRI A E HA A BB B A% B KL T AR
Ry EER -

 E-FT——F+-_A=+—HRK
—E—=%+=ZA= +f5¢¢
B ASEEZN—ELE DS
M%%m@—ﬁﬁﬁmtmﬁﬁi
MEHFNEE - TESINZHIRE
BAEHE DK D EERI DT o

AREEWEZ R0 ER S 5 HRE
SIMEPOBBENERDEE R
F R & B A SN I 1R 5 B0 45 FT B
7P 2R A B10% e

PEESREESEAR AR

‘



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 25 A P i

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_Z—=F1+-A=+—HILEFE

8. LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX 8. XRETAIEHAIERE

2013 2012
—EBE-=F —T-—F

HK$’000 HK$’000
THETT THETT

Loss before income tax is arrived at  REHPTE R BT E 1B &K

after charging: THEIEEY -
Auditor’s remuneration ZEEN N & 265 250
Depreciation e 128 254
Employee benefit expense (note 12) {EERBFIFE X (HizE12) 6,731 6,900
Exchange loss, net MEH EE - 35 - /
Operating lease charges in respect T+ REBF 2 RKLHEE A
of land and buildings 666 3,281
Loss on disposal of property, HEME  BMENEEZ
plant and equipment B8 178 31
Loss on disposal of available-for-sale HEFEMBKEE 2 E1E
financial assets (note 16) (ftzE16) 1,341 -
9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 9. FiEBiMAxX
The Group is not subject to any taxation under the FA - AEEBEANFAERE R
jurisdiction of the Cayman Islands and British Virgin EEBRZHE(|RBREZHS])A
Islands (“BVI”) during the year (2012: Nil). EERAMNEAMBFEBE(ZE—ZF :
) o
No Hong Kong profits tax has been provided as the BB 7 F 1A 7K £ [ 7 8 AT {n] R R A A
Group did not generate any assessable profit for the year A - BB E B NG E LB
(2012: Nil). (ZZ——F )
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S s i Mk

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_Z—=F+-_A=+—HLFE

9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

Reconciliation between income tax expense and
accounting loss at applicable tax rates:

RETPIIS BRI &R

Loss before income tax

RERAH%E16.5%

(ZTE——%F :16.5%)

| A

Tax on loss before income tax,
calculated at applicable rate of
16.5% (2012: 16.5%) Al =

Tax effect of non-taxable income JEFERFL UL A 2 TR 75

Tax effect of non-deductible expenses A HIRFE X 2 Fi iS5 s 22

Tax effect on tax losses not RIERHIBEE 2 HRIET
recognised

By 48R
=

Income tax expense FriEfiMA =<

At 31 December 2013, the Group has estimated unused
tax losses of approximately HK$109,763,000 (2012:
HK$101,802,000) available for offsetting against future
taxable profits of the companies which incurred the
losses. Deferred tax assets have not been recognised
in respect of these losses due to the unpredictability of
future profit streams. Under the current tax legislation,
the tax losses can be carried forward indefinitely.

Saved as disclosed above, the Group and the Company
did not have any significant deferred tax assets and
liabilities as at 31 December 2013 (2012: Nil).

10. LOSS FOR THE YEAR 10.
Of the consolidated loss for the year attributable to the
owners of the Company of approximately HK$9,863,000
(2012: HK$22,862,000), a loss of approximately
HK$9,857,000 (2012: HK$22,860,000) has been dealt

with in the financial statements of the Company.

FriS®Bipa < (4])
FEREIRRERAN R ®
SHESIRZ IR

2012
—E——4F
HK$’000
FET

HK$’000
TAETT

(9,863) (22,862)
(1,626) (3,772)
(39) (37)
352 13
%E
1,313 3,796

W-ZE—-—=F+-"A=+—H " ' K&
SEzEFRBAREBEOR
109,763,000 jL ( =& — = F :
101,802,000 7T ) + AT SH EE £ 7%
EEB AR ZRRERBRN ©
HRRES TS B R KRERD &
] IR IEEE - I RER
EERIBEE - BEBERTHE - B
TAE1E ] MR AR AR 9 o

BREMEBRBFEUIIN  AEE R
RRRIRZE—=F+="A=+—
AYEFRENEEHEEERE
BE(ZE—ZF: &)

KEEHIE

RKAGBEBEABRBEARFEREE
B #9,863,000 8 L (= F — =
F 122,862,000 T ) B - Ei8
#79,857,000 8 L (=& — = F
22,860,000/8 7T ) B A AN A &) B 7% 3R

FREERIE o
1 -

TEcHHESEAR AR
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_Z—=F+-_A=+—HLFE

11.

12.

LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic loss per share is based on
the loss attributable to the owners of the Company of
approximately HK$9,863,000 (2012: HK$22,862,000)
and 443,479,882 ordinary shares for the year ended 31
December 2013 (2012: on the weighted average number
of 364,183,854 ordinary shares, as adjusted to reflect
the bonus issue and share consolidation in 2012).

The diluted loss per share attributable to the owners of
the Company for the years ended 31 December 2012
and 2013 was the same as there was no potential
dilutive share outstanding during the years.

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
(INCLUDING DIRECTORS”’
REMUNERATION)

Salaries and other allowances
(including directors’ fee)

Pension costs — defined contribution
plans

we)

11.

12.

BREE
BEREXREBEDREBERAFTHEE A
JE 1 &5 18 499,863,000/ 8 T ( = &
— 4 :22.862,00087L) MEE—
T-—ZF+ A=+ HILFEY
A8 B 443,479,882 (=& — =
F ¢ piAEF 9 8r364,183,854 0% L i@
B ERAERUIRBM-ZZE——FaORK
BITRBROEHNTE)FTE -

BHE-_Z——FER-_FT—=F+=
A=+—HALtFEARRAHEEALRE
HERBEEEER  RARFA
Wi BB EETENRNOEET -

EERARX (BREESH

2012
—E——4F
HK$’000
FET

HK$’000
TAETT

FehEMEM(BRES

BRERAN —TERR G S

6,598 6,763
133 137
6,731 6,900
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 25 A P i

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_Z—=F1+-A=+—HILEFE

13. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND 13. EE£Mek SN EEEMS
SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS

()  Directors’ remuneration (i) EE=EME
The remuneration paid or payable to the directors EfNKENESMEOT -

were as follows:

Pension

Salaries, costs -

allowances defined

Date of appointment/ and benefits  contribution
resignation during the year Fees in kind

BERH Bs
HK$'000
TAL

Year ended HE-E-=E{=f
31 December 2013 Zt-RLEE

Executive directors YrES

Chan Chi Hung B Resigned on 15 July 2013 150 109 9 268
RZE-ZELATRARHE

Choi Wai King Y Appointed on 3 May 2013 390 - - 390
R-E-=ERA-REZA

Choy Kwok Hung, Patrick (i)~ Z B (i) 360 - - 360

John Yen Jong Ling B Appointed on 3 June 2013 350 - - 350

RoF-=FRA=RERE

Non-executive director ~ FHTEEZ

Wang Qiang (i T () Appointed on 18 January 2013 343 - - 343
R-Z-=F-AT/\REZf{
Yang Nai Jiang BT Resigned on 8 May 2013 30 - - 30
RIF-ZERANBEM
Independent BIFHTES
non-executive directors
Chan Kam Man BHX() 240 - - 240

TEcHHESEAR AR




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 25 A P i

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_Z—=F1+-A=+—HILEFE

13. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND 13. EXEMEeRSAEEEMN S

SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (#&)
(Continued)
()  Directors’ remuneration (Continued) i) ESMHEE

Pension

Salaries, costs -

allowances defined

Date of appointment/ and benefits  contribution
resignation during the year Fees in kind

Chan Man Yi BaE Appointed on 1 February 2013 110 - - 110
W-T-=F_fA-REZf

Chung Koon Yan EER Resigned on 18 January 2013 9 - - 9
RZE-=F-AT/\BEE

Chung Shu Kun, Christopher &R Resigned on 1 February 2013 10 - - 10
R-F-ZE-A-BRf

John Yen Jong Ling B Appointed on 18 January 2013 134 - - 134

and resigned on 3 June 2013
RZB-=%-R+/\BEZE
RRZE-Z5/ A=REf

Kwok Yuen Lam, Sophia ) Z43K() 240 - - 240

Mak Man i, Jackie THE Resigned on 28 March 2013 40 - - 40
RZT-=E=A-+/\BEf

Wiliam Keith Jacobsen EgH Appointed on 1 February 2013 10 - - 110
R-T-=F_A-REZf

Yue Man Yiu, Matthew AR Resigned on 1 February 2013 15 - - 15

R-E-=E-A-REf

2,581 109 9 2,649
(i) Mr. Wang Qiang, Mr. Chan Kam Man and Ms. Kwok (i) TR - RIB I E R
Yuen Lam, Sophia were being removed as directors Bz TR ARE ZE—N
on 22 January 2014 upon the approval in the F—f -+ -B8THRE
extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on BRIRg EEHERN =
22 January 2014. —WFE-AZ+ZHAHER
B -
(i) Mr. Choy Kwok Hung, Patrick resigned on 7 February (ii) EFESLAR T —JFE —
2014. AEBEHT -
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE-2-=F+-A=t—ALEE

13. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND

SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS

(Continued)

(i) Directors’ remuneration (Continued)

Year ended

31 December 2012
Executive directors
Chan Chi Hung
Choy Kwok Hung, Patrick
Lin Wen Pin

Non-executive director
Yang Nai Jiang

Independent
non-executive directors

Chung Koon Yan

Yue Man Yiu, Matthew

Chung Shu Kun, Christopher

Chan Kam Man

Kwok Yuen Lam, Sophia

Mak Man Yi, Jackie

Date of appointment/
resignation during the year

RERER/
BERS

HE-R-2£1Zf
ZT-BLEE

HES

RS

LGl

X Appainted on 31 August 2011

and resigned on 1 February 2012
RZT-——EN\A=+-HEZ
ERR-F-—F-A-REf

FYTES
f#hIL Appointed on 31 August 2011
R-B-——E\A=+-RERE

BUkHTES

EER

AR

B

REX Appointed on 30 May 2012
R-E-—ERA-TRERA

i Appointed on 30 May 2012
R-E-—ERA-TRERA

& Appointed on 30 May 2012

Wo2-—FRA-THEZE

13.

EEMEREREEEMNE

(&)
) EEHS (R

Pension
COsts -
defined
contribution
plans
R’INE
BA-E8
{HEE

I\

Salaries,
allowances
and bengfits
in kind

Fees Total

5t

K$ HK$'000

TiEn B

300 233 14 547
360 = = 360
50 = = 50
215 206 = 481
150 = = 150
150 = = 150
120 = = 120
14 = = 14
14 = = 14
1 = = 71
1,758 439 14 2,211

There was no arrangement under which a director
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration
during the year (2012: Nil).

FAEFHREITLNEXRBNE
EAMe 2L (T ——F : &) -
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE-2-=F+-A=t—ALEE

13. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND 13.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS

(Continued)

(ii)  Five highest paid individuals
The five individuals whose emoluments were the
highest in the Group for the year included two (2012:
three) directors whose emoluments are reflected
in the analysis presented above. The emoluments
payable to the remaining three (2012: two) highest
paid individuals during the year are as follows:

EEMEREREEEME

(IIFE.;)

(i) HEBRSHFMAL
FR - ARERRRSHEMA
TtEEME(ZE——F: =
BIEF BREZHHABER
REXZAH - FREN T
T=2(ZF——F : MA)&®
BEHMALZHMFBDOT

2013 2012
—EBE-=F T

HK$’000 HK$’000
THET THETT

Salaries and other allowances e KEMER 2,622 1,958

Pension costs — defined BRIRE KA — TREHER
contribution plans HEl 43 28
2,565 1,986

The emoluments of non-director individuals fell
within the following bands:

FEFEAZTMENRAT R
] -

Number of individuals
A

2013 2012

Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ %1,000,0007 7T
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000  1,000,001&TE
1,500,000/ 7T

During the year, no emoluments were paid
by the Group to the Company’s directors or
any of the five highest paid individuals as an
inducement to join, or upon joining the Group, or
as compensation for loss of office (2012: Nil).

(iii) Senior management’s emoluments
The emoluments paid or payable to fourteen
(2012: ten) members of senior management
whose emoluments fell within the band of Nil to
HK$1,000,000 during the year.

‘ China Financial Leasing Group Limited ‘ Annual Report 2013
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_Z—=F1+-A=+—HILEFE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. Y% - BERRE
Group and Company KEBERAQF

Furniture
Motor  and office
vehicles equipment
1R K2

T N g
HK$'000  HK$'000

FET FET

At 1 January 2012 RZZE——F—H—H
Cost BX 7N 542 504 1,046
Accumulated depreciation 2=t e (407) (259) (666)
Net book amount BREFEE 185 245 380
Year ended HE-_T——-F+=-A

31 December 2012 =r—[EIEE
Opening net book amount FHEREFE 135 245 380
Additions NE 983 95 1,078
Disposals & (234) — (234)
Depreciation e (146) (108) (254)
Closing net book amount FIRERHENFE 738 232 970
At 31 December 2012 RZZE—Z—F+=A

and 1 January 2013 =+—RBAR=-ZT—=%F

—H—H

Cost AR 1,197 599 1,796
Accumulated depreciation St E (459) (367) (826)
Net book amount EREFE 738 232 970
Year ended BE2-_FE—=%+=A8

31 December 2013 =+—HLEE
Opening net book amount FYIREFE 738 232 970
Disposals & (468) (160) (628)
Depreciation e (96) (32) (128)
Closing net book amount FIRERHEFE 174 40 214
At 31 December 2013 R=-B—=%+=A

=+—H

Cost AR 247 57 304
Accumulated depreciation Z5tihE (73) (17) (90)
Net book amount EREFE 174 40 214

TEcHHESEAR AR
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_Z—=F1+-A=+—HILEFE

15. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES/AMOUNTS 15. RMB A 7 2%~ FE UM
DUE FROM SUBSIDIARIES B~ R IE
Company RAE

2013 2012
—EBE-=F —T-—F

HK$’000 HK$’000
THTT THETT

Unlisted shares, at cost JE TR ¢ AR 1 1
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUI B A Bl 3 IE 2,726 2,706
Less: Impairment losses recognised & : 2R EEE (2,706) (2,706)
20 -
The movement in the impairment losses recognised for JiE BT B N B R TE A B R SR BB IS
amounts due from subsidiaries is as follows: EHE ST

Balance at 1 January R—A— BRI 2,706 2,682

Impairment losses recognised BRI EE R - 24

Balance at 31 December R+ RAR=+—B8M&E&H 2,706 2,706
The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, FERMB AR RIBEREER 28
interest-free and repayable on demand. RARERKER -
The directors consider that the carrying amounts of the BEERA FURWEBARIRIEZEE
amounts due from subsidiaries approximate their fair HMEEFSERNFEHHZ A FER
values at the reporting dates because these amounts 5 WTHRZEeERELERT
have short maturity periods on their inception, such that HARE  AiteRsREEESY

the time value of money impact is not significant. BRK o
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For the year ended 31 December 2013

HE-T-—=F+-A=t—ALFE

15. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES/AMOUNTS 15. KRB A Tl 2~ FE WK

DUE FROM SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) BARIKIE(E)

Company (Continued) /N6

Particulars of the subsidiaries at 31 December 2013 are RZE—=F+-_A=+—HWE

as follows: NAIZFEWAT :
Place of Particulars of Percentage of
incorporation/ issued and fully issued capital held by  Principal activities

Name of subsidiaries kind of legal entity paid share capital the Company directly  and place of operation

Baiifave:L e BEETRAR ARAEERAL FEXK

ME AR ETERER R BREIRACEDL  REEHE

China Financial Leasing BV, limited liability 1 ordinary share of 100% Dormant, the People’s
Group (B.V.I.) Limited company US$1 Republic of China

RERAES  ARAF \RAEIZT EER (PRC")
TR PEARA
ME(THE])

China Financial Leasing ~ Hong Kong, limited 1 ordinary share of 100% Dormant, Hong Kong
Group (Hong Kong) liability company HK$1 TmEx - BA
Limited B8 BRRA 1REEHET Rk

TEERMESE(EE)

BRARA
16. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL 16. SEMKEE
ASSETS
Group and Company EEERAKAF

AR 2 - IAANET
KA ZIF EmES -

Equity securities, at cost

Unlisted in the PRC 3,341

TEcHHESEAR AR
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_Z—=F+-_A=+—HLFE

16.

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL
ASSETS (Continued)

Group and Company (Continued)

Particulars of the unlisted available-for-sale equity
securities at 31 December 2012 are as follows:

HEVMBEER)

AEBRADT(E)
R-E——F+-_A=+—H83E
MEERAZTLHZFBOT ¢

Particulars

Place of of issued

incorporation  Principal activities shares held

P2 31T

AR FEER BAD =15

Beijing LED Lighting PRC Wholesale of RMB2,760,000 12%

Engineering Company high technology AR
Limited (“BJLED”) electronic products 2,760,0007T

It RERAIRATRE
BRAR([1ERE
=it )

BJLED is a PRC company, in which Mr. Choy Kwok
Hung, Patrick, an executive director of the Company,
has equity interest in it.

The unlisted available-for-sale equity securities as at 31
December 2012 were measured at cost less impairment
at reporting date because there was no open market
on the unlisted investment and the management had no
intention to dispose such investment as at 31 December
2012. Accordingly, the directors of the Company
were of the opinion that fair value could not be reliably
measured.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Company
disposed of its unlisted available-for-sale equity
securities, BJLED. The sale proceeds amounted to
approximately HK$2,000,000 and a loss on disposal of
approximately HK$1,341,000 was recognised in profit or
loss during the year ended 31 December 2013.

SR EFEMR I

Ik RE@AEMA—EERT - A
ARRTEEREM R ERE LR
AH -

W-_ZE——F+-_fF=+—8" 3
T HERABHRANAR RS A
HREE  RAEMIFELTRE
VTEAFRMBURERER-SE
——F+ZA=+—HTREEZ
ZHRE -REHt  XRREFZRAR
FEMEEREFE -

BE-F-=4+-A=+—AL
FE - AARAHEREETHEER
AKBAULREBRM - HEMRER
JE#) 52,000,000/ 7T © HE SIS E
B41,341,0008 TERBE-Z
—ZHF+ A=+ -BLEFENE
mRNER ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_Z—=F1+-A=+—HILEFE

17. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 17. ZREBERRAFEFTEZH

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS BEE
Group and Company REBRAEAAT

Equity securities held for trading,
at fair value MRANGE 5
Listed in Hong Kong REHE LT

Fair values of these investments have been determined
by reference to their quoted bid prices at the reporting
date. Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss are presented within the section on operating
activities as a part of changes in working capital in the
consolidated statement of cash flows.

Changes in fair values of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are recorded as net gain/loss on
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

The realised and unrealised gain on financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss for the year ended
31 December 2013 is approximately HK$2,787,000 and
HK$213,000 respectively (2012: realised and unrealised
loss of approximately HK$4,950,000 and HK$1,105,000
respectively), the aggregate of which is recorded as net
gain/loss on financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.

As at 31 December 2013, the carrying amounts of
the listed equity securities of the following companies
exceed 10% of total assets of the Group and the
Company.

FIEEBER A HERE

2013 2012
—E——4F

HK$’000 HK$’000
THETT THETT

34,430 39,367

HEREZRFEDIRZERER
BERHcHERENETE - 36
BRBRAVFEABEZMBEERNE
LEBAZEN  ERAEARERE
RANEEBEESBH 28D °

FRENEATENEHBEE
2 RFEEBNHAGA 2 TR
£ 0 5 BEBBRE LA FEANE
2B E RS AR -

REz-_Z—=F+-_A=+—H
HFE  ZBRBERERATEFEZ
MBEECZEERRRERRED
R4 &2,787,0007% T & 213,0007%
T(MBE-ZT——F : 2R KK
B30 B 18 D Bl #4,950,000 7% T &
1,105,000/ L) - BB EDH R
FETHAKRRER [EREBEREATE
ECMBREEZ W (BE)F
BJIET °

R-Z—=H+=A=+—0 Y
FARMZ ETRAES 2 BEERE
AKERAR T2 BAE0% -

TEcHHESEAR AR
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_Z—=F1+-A=+—HILEFE

17. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 17. ZBEBREAFETAE2H

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued) KEE(E)
Group and Company (Continued) AEERAAT (&)

Accumulated

fair value

Dividend gains/{osses)

income Net assets/ o investment

Particulars of Investment received (liabilties) - recognised in

As at issued Interest cost  Fairvalue of during Dividend  attributable in financial
Principal activities 31 December ~ shares held held thereto investment the year cover the investment statements

A
HK§'000
ThEL
China Assurance Financial guarantee services, 2012 - - - - - - - -
Finance Group Limited  performance quarantee “3--f
hERREBEAARL  senices and advisory
g services
HBERRR  BOERRS
RERRE
2013 5,800,000 0.37% 7,908 9,976 - - 167 2,068
ZZ-=F  ordinary shares
5,800,000
LAk
Newreg Group Hygienic Disposables 2012 5,000,000 0.75% 10,041 10,100 - - 2,929 59
Holdings Limited Business, MTBE ZF-ZF  ordinary shares
RIIEERERAE  Business and Household 5,000,000%
Consumables Business LEk
~REGERRER
FENTAREHR
R e
2013 1,940,000 0.27% 5,622 6,344 = = 1,005 2
ZZ-=F  ordinary shares
1,940,000%
LEk
Long Success Manufacturing and sales of 2012 - - - - - - - -
International Holdings  paper products I-Z
Limted (long ~ HERERAZER
Suceess’) (Note 1)
ERER (2R ERAR
(A& ) (Hit1)
2018 13,450,000 0.9% 8,106 5447 = = (622) (2,659
ZZ-=F  ordinary shares
18,450,000%
Lak
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HE-_Z—=F1+-A=+—HILEFE

17. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 17. ZBEBREAFEFAE2H

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued) KEE(E)
Group and Company (Continued) AEERAAT (&)

Accumulated

far value

Dividend gains/{osses)

income Net assets/  on investment

Particulars of Investment received (liabilties)  recognised in

As at issued cost  Fairvalue of during Dividend ~ atfributable in financial

Principal activities 31 December ~ shares held thereto investment the year cover  the investment statements

Leing & ST

HK$'00 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TR T B AT T

Rising Power GP Payment gateway business, 2012 - - - - - - - -
Holdings Limited energy management i

ANGEERERAT  busiess, integrated
solutions for ighting
glectromagnetic pulse
protection business and
manufacturing and trading
of products related to
optimal optical fioers,
telecommunications, electric
power network systems and
equipment

SHTARY LRERR
B EEERRENESH

268
RZERAE ER

2013 5,800,000 1.31% 4707 4176 - - 1941 (631)
ZZ-=F  ordinary shares
5,800,000
LR
Opes Asia Development Investment in listed and 2012 = = = = = = = =
Limited unlisted companies 3%
ERTNERERAR RELTRELDMAR
2013 14,000,000 3.90% 2,948 2,660 - - 2,962 (288
ZZ-=F  ordinary shares
14,000,000%
Lak
Ming Kei Holdings Property investments; and 2012 16,908,000 8.59% 1,621 8,032 - - 10,666 411
Limited business of coal trading Z5-ZF  ordinary shares
RERRERAA busingss 16,908,000%
BHEREREERREH EER
2013 5,782,400 0.87% 1,308 2,680 - - 1,787 1207
ZZ-ZF  ordinary shares
5,782,4001%

Rk
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_Z—=F1+-A=+—HILEFE

17. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 17. ZBEBREAFETAE2H

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued) KEE(E)
Group and Company (Continued) AEERAAT (&)

Accumulated

fair value

Dividend gains/osses)

income Net assets/  on investment

Particulars of Investment received (liabilties)  recognised in

As at issued cost  Fairvalue of during Dividend  atfributable in financial

Principal activities 31 December ~ shares held investment the year cover the investment statements

L esinn B BE

HKS'00 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TR TAT B AT Thn

Wealth Glory Holdings  Supply and sale of dried 2012 - - - - - - - -
Limited noodles including bowl i

EEERERAA noodles and packed
noodles; manufacture
and sale of fresh noodles,
including but not limited to
hefen, wonton noodles and
yi mein; and investment
holding in coal trading
business

RERGERER  niER

REHE: HEREERE
B EETRINTH
ERARFHE: RERES

ZHhiRERR
2013 4,362,000 0.37% 913 631 - - 539 (282)
“2-=F  ordinary shares
4,352,000
EER
Datronix Holdings LimitedManufacturing and tracing 2012 126,000 0.04% 365 164 4 72.63 15 (201)
BENRERERAT  electronic components 5% ordinary shares
inboth Hong Kong and 126,000
oversea markets LER
REBRENTRHEREE
B
2013 126,000 0.04% 374 162 3 515 16 (212)
Z5-=F  ordinary shares
126,000 & @k
Yantai North Andre ~ Manufacturing and sale of 2012 200,000 0.006% 59 62 1 9.78 69 3
Juice Co., Ltd apple juice concentrate, 5% ordinary shares
RatAZEHRET  pearjuice concentrate, 200,000%
RAERAT apple essence, feedstuff LR
and related products
PERHERERRT - R
T ERER BHRH
BEn
2013 7,500 0.005% 22 14 1 534 68 @®
ZZ-ZF  ordinary shares
7500REER
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_Z—=F1+-A=+—HILEFE

17. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 17. ZBEBREAFEFAE2H

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued) KEE(E)
Group and Company (Continued) AEBRADQT(E)

Accumulated
falr value
Dividend ing/
income fs/  oninvestment
Particulars of Investment received (I recognised in
As at issued cost  Fairvalue of during Dividend ~ atfributable in financial
Principal activities 31December  shares held thereto investment the year cover the investment statements

B i REM
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tin TAT AT
JG Group Holdings ~ Cloud computing products and 2012 - - - - - - - -
Limited theirrelated solutionsand ~~ =F—=%
services }
ERERERRAREIZR
i
2013 4,000,000 1.00% 2,486 2,440 - - 629 (46)
ZZ-=F  ordinary shares
4,000,0008%
LER
(Note 1) (W)
Up to the date of this financial statement, trading in the shares of Long HEARBREXAH  ARZBROHR-ZT—=
Success has been suspended with effect from 3 December 2013 F+-A-HHAKREEEE B2 51TBHNA
and will remain suspended until further notice. The directors of the ke ARREERBARIBNEEZ N FE
Company consider that the fair value of investment in Long Success N2ERSR-_F-ZHF+-A=ZRA(MRE

TiEEA) cHEREMERE - RBARF
BEE2ER  REENAN  BERNBEHROE
5,000,000/ 7L 2 % & I FEFE °

has been determined by reference to its quoted bid price immediately
before the suspension of trading in its shares on 3 December 2013. As
per the directors of the Company, no impairment of the investment in
Long Success amounted to approximately HK$5,000,000 is expected
based on the current status.




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A B A i
For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE-2-=F+-A=t—ALEE

18. DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS 18.

Group
K&
2013

—E—=fF
HK$’000
TET

BERANREA

Company

PA/NE]
2012 2013 2012
—T-=F —T-—_F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FET FET

Deposits ®Be 78 863 78 863
Prepayments B IR 60 511 59 509
138 1,374 137 1,372

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of
deposits and prepayments approximate their fair values
at the reporting dates because these amounts have
short maturity periods on their inception, such that the
time value of money impact is not significant.

19. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 19.
Group and Company

EER/AREMEANFAZEREE
HRERREAP 2 AFERE
R ZEERNEERIHA
BE AeEzHREEFZED
* o

BekReEHEAHR
AEERARAT

2013 2012
—_F—= —E——F

HK$’000 HK$’000
TATT TATT

Cash at banks and in hand IR{TTNFHEES
Demand deposits & BRTF K

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at banks and
in hand and demand deposit with original maturity of
three months or less. The carrying amounts of the cash
and cash equivalents approximate their fair values.

The demand deposits carried an effective interest rate
of 0.04% (2012: 0.03%) per annum as at 31 December
2018.

‘ China Financial Leasing Group Limited ‘ Annual Report 2013

640 3,260
8,001 5,040
8,641 8,300

BelkBieFEBRBRERTET
BRELRIABR=MEALAT
ZEER - BekAEEFERA
ZAREERNEZ N HEEE

RZF—=F+ZA=+—0 &
HERZEBRFMNEAE0.04%(=F
— % 1 0.03%) °



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S s i Mk

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_Z—=F1+-A=+—HILEFE

20. SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised:

At 1 January 2012

Share consolidation

Capital reduction and
sub-division

At 31 December 2012,
1 January 2013 and
31 December 2013

Issued and fully paid:
At 1 January 2012
Issue of bonus shares
Share consolidation
Issue of ordinary shares
on placing
Issue of ordinary shares
on open offer
Capital reduction and
sub-division

At 31 December 2012,
1 January 2013 and
31 December 2013

Number
of ordinary
shares of

Notes  HK$0.01 each
BRE{E.017%;

20. B&

Number

of ordinary
shares of
HK$0.2 each

SHRAE02ET

Al A

Number

of ordinary
SIEE
HK$0.02 each

HK$'000

TER

EE
R-E-—%-f-A 30,000,000,000 - - 300,000
R ad (30,000,000,000) 1,500,000,000 - -
RAER R
- (1,500,000,0000 15,000,000,000 -
RZE-Z#1ZA=1-R =%
—Z#-B-BR-F-Z%1=
B=t-H - - 15,000,000,000 300,000
ERTRAR
R-E--%-A-R 985,573,020 - - 9,856
¥k () 3,942,292,080 - - 30,423
Riad (i) (49278651000 246,393,255 - -
RERZTLAR
i) - 49,260,000 - 9,852
AREERRTLAR
(i) - 147,826,627 - 29,565
RAER R
(v - (443479880 443479882 (79,826)
RZE-Z#fZA=1-H -%
—ZE-F-AR-F-=E+1-
A=1-H - - 443,479,882 8,870

TEcHHESEAR AR
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE-T-=F+-A=+—ALFE

20. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes:

(i)

(i

(ii)

(iv)

Pursuant to the ordinary resolution of the extraordinary general
meeting passed on 21 December 2011, a bonus issue was
approved to issue on the basis of four bonus shares for every
then existing share held by the qualifying shareholders on 4
January 2012. The bonus issue was completed on 10 January
2012 and 3,942,292,080 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each
were issued.

Pursuant to the announcement made by the Company on 20
January 2012, the directors of the Company proposed to effect
the share consolidation pursuant to which every twenty issued
and unissued shares of HK$0.01 each in the share capital
of the Company will be consolidated into one consolidated
share of HK$0.2 each (the “Share Consolidation”). The
Share Consolidation is approved on 17 February 2012 and
completed on 20 February 2012. Details of which were
disclosed in the circular of the Company dated 2 February
2012.

On 2 March 2012, 49,260,000 shares of HK$0.2 each
were issued at a price of HK$0.238 per share pursuant to a
placing agreement dated 23 February 2012 as detailed in the
announcements dated 23 February 2012, 27 February 2012
and 2 March 2012.

On 25 June 2012, 147,826,627 shares of HK$0.2 each were
issued pursuant to the open offer at a price of HK$0.2 per
share on the basis of one share for every two then existing
shares held by the qualifying shareholders on 31 May 2012 as
detailed in a circular dated 1 June 2012.

20. BA(#E)

it

(i)

(ii)

(iv)

BER_T——FTA=+—HBE
BZRRBFHIAG 2L BRER B
HEOEEITA R BT U A BB ER
—E-——F—-ANAERHE—RRA
AR BT AR AT FIAR 19 © ALAREEITE
RZZT——F—A+HREK 2817
3,942,292,080 B AREE0.01E T2
TR o

BEARFAR_ZE—Z_F—A=1+H
Hg 2D ARAREREHFETR
BEM - Bt ARARRARE =+
REREE0.01E T2 B BT RAEHE
TR - A R—REE2E T
AHBRG(TROEH]) - RHEHE
RZTE——F A+ tHEHETH
—ZT——F-A-+H%MK- - HFB
BERARFTNR_T—=-F=-A=H
FlgEz@m -

W-Z——F=ZA—H REEHA
ZE—ZHFZAZ+Z=ZBZEREH
7% 49,260,000 B EEO.2E T2
D D IEER0.238 T T IAIT - H
HBERAR_T—=—F=-A=+=8"
T ZHFZAZ+tARZE—Z=
F=AZAREZAH -

RZE—-—Z=ZF~AZ+HH
147,826,627 IR T R EE 0.2 T 2
BROEEERRENR_ZE——_FAHA
=t BEEREMRERRERNE
BE—RIRG 2 EE  BREAHABEER
BROETTIANET  EFBRRZ
T—ZFAA—BHEZBE-
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HE-_Z—=F1+-A=+—HILEFE

20. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

21.

(v)

Pursuant to a special resolution passed by the shareholders
of the Company at an extraordinary general meeting held on
8 August 2012, the issued share capital of the Company was
proposed to be reduced by reducing the par value of each of
the issued shares of the Company from HK$0.20 to HK$0.02
by cancelling the paid-up capital to the extent of HK$0.18 per
issued share (the “Capital Reduction”). Part of the credit arising
from such reduction would be applied towards cancelling the
accumulated loss of the Company, while the balance (if any)
would be transferred to the capital reduction reserve account
of the Company which may be utilised by the directors as
a distributable reserve in accordance with the articles of
association of the Company (the “Articles”) and all applicable
laws. Immediately following the Capital Reduction becomes
effective, each authorised but unissued share will also be
sub-divided into 10 new shares with a par value of HK$0.02
each. On 7 December 2012, the Grant Court of the Cayman
Islands granted an order to confirm the capital reduction of the
Company and the Capital Reduction became effective on 10
December 2012. Details of which were disclosed in the circular
of the Company dated 16 July 2012.

RESERVES
Group

Share premium 0w E
Capital reduction reserve BREIR R
Accumulated losses RETEE

The movement of the Group’s reserves for the years are
presented in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity.

20. BRA(4&)

GEE

v)

21.

(&)

BEARFTBREAZZ——F/ AN
ARTZBREFINAG LBBAZ—H
BlAZR  BEE2ERTHEAR
K EBARRRERE FEITRG 2HEE
1 0.20% L 2 0. 02/%71:(#HXE
BITRMIBA018BTT) - B
ZE%ﬁ%$H%$MﬁD°EMW
EEZERE - BI2BARBLEAA
A2 BFTEE - 8B (0E) BERE
RATRERHREBERES JHES
BRANBABERMA (A ] R
FrBERAEEIEATH Y IRFEEME
o BERERAEIRERE  SRET
BARETIRG IMEFAB10RSRE
BO0.02B T ZHRH - RZT—=4F
+ZAtHE AEBREXRERE LS
2 ERARRQRIRAER o BRAHEE,
R-T——F+-A+E4EM - FHB
WERARAR-Z——F+ A+
A FEE 2B o

(G

AW

2013 2012
=% —T-=f
HK$’000

Fb

HK$’'000
TATT

(i 29,998 29,998
19,444 19,444
(15,259) (5,396)
34,183 44,046
AEERBHEFEZHBEZHNE
ERREHRET -

HEE

WHEEEARAT

‘
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21. RESERVES (Continued) 21. fRE(E)
Company RAFE

Capital
Share reduction  Accumulated
premium reserve losses Total
Bin  EARHDE S
(B s B MBET

HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
FHL  FET  TAT  THAL
Note (i) Note 20(v)
BYEEG)  PEE20(v)

At 1 January 2012 MN-ZT——F
—HA—H 69,085 - (42,904) 26,181

Issue of ordinary shares  ZX{TEiBR

(note 20 (i) and (iv)) (Bft 3E20(ii) K (iv)) (37,551) - - (37,551)
Share issue expenses D EEITH X (1,536) — — (1,536)
Capital reduction AR ZSHI Rk

(note 20(v)) (Fff5E20(v)) - 19,444 60,382 79,826
Transactions with owners EHAEAZ X5 (39,087) 19,444 60,382 40,739
Loss for the year and FRNEBEEBEFA

total comprehensive EHEKR AL

income for the year - - (22,860) (22,860)

At 31 December 2012 R-ZE——4F
and 1 January 2013 +—-—HA=+—H
NZF—=%F
—H—H 29,998 19,444 (5,382) 44,060

Loss for the year and FANBFEERFER
total comprehensive EHEKRALLEE
income for the year - - (9,857) (9,857)

At 31 December 2013 N-E—=
+=—H=+—H 29,998 19,444 (15,239) 34,203

m ‘ China Financial Leasing Group Limited ‘ Annual Report 2013
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21. RESERVES (Continued)

Company (Continued)
Notes:

(i) In accordance with the Companies Law (2007 Revision) of
the Cayman Islands, the share premium is distributable to
shareholders of the Company provided that immediately
following the date on which the dividend is proposed to be
distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay off its
debts as and when they fall due in the ordinary course of
business. The share premium may also be distributed in the
form of fully paid bonus shares.

22. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS
Group and Company

At 31 December 2013, the total future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases are

payable by the Group/Company as follows:

—FR
F_EXRF(BHEER
M)

Within one year
In the second to fifth years inclusive

The Group/Company leases certain of its office
properties under operating leases. The leases run for
an initial period of one to two years, with options to
renew the lease terms at the expiry dates or at dates as
mutually agreed between the Group/Company and the
respective landlords/lessors. None of the leases include
contingent rentals.

OTHER COMMITMENTS
As at 31 December 2012 and 2013, the Group and the
Company have no significant commitments.

23.

24. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2012 and 2013, the Group and the
Company have no significant contingent liabilities.

21.

22.

23.

24.

e ()
RF ()
B3t

0) BERASHESQAFIEA(ZEELFER]
h) - B s ER RN FARRFZ
R HEZEEZ D IRREE B
% ARBIEBRNBEEERTEE
R BIHR 2 E15 o B0 5 B JF Al LA
BARZFRDIE -

AR
FEERADT

NR-—FE—=F+—-"A=+—H &
S8/ ARRRBRBETARBLEHE
RN ZARKEBERAELTELN

:
2013 2012
—_EF—= —E——4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET AT
385 707
- 385
385 1,092

AEE/ARBRELEEEEA
HETHRAEYR - 2FHONE
FHMAS—ZMF - AR ERA#K
AEE/KARARESEE HEA
KRWE 2 AEES - ZFHEM
TEREXAEE -

HAth &8
R-F-—ZFR=ZF—=%+=H
=t—H  ARERARRLEE
(EEPNES

HREE

RZE——FE-_F—=F+=-H
=+—B8 AEBERARQRIES

MEARKABE -
|

TEcHHESEAR AR
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25. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(@) In addition to the transactions and balances
disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated
financial statements, the Group had the following

significant transactions with related parties:

25. BEALIXRS

(@)

BRINER & B S SR B b 3t 77 3
B2RP MR REEH
BEALTETATEARRS :

2013 2012

HK$’000 HK$’'000
TATT TATT

Investment management fee Bt/ BN TFREEE

paid/payable to Wealth Assets BRARIZIREEES

Management Limited

Notes:

Pursuant to the investment management agreement dated
7 October 2002 (the “Investment Management Agreement”)
entered into between the Company and Wealth Assets
Management Limited (the “Investment Manager”), the
Investment Manager has agreed to provide the Company
with investment management services (excluding general
administrative services) commencing on 28 October
2002, the date of the commencement of the trading of the
Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange. In October 2013,
the Investment Management Agreement has been renewed
commencing on 1 October 2013 unless and until terminated by
either the Company or the Investment Manager by serving not
less than two months’ notice in writing.

With effect from 1 October 2013, the monthly management fee
was reduced from HK$70,000 to HK$35,000 per month. The
management fee to the Investment Manager is a de minimis
transaction under Rule 14A.33(3)(b) of the Listing Rules which
is exempt from the reporting, announcement and independent
shareholders’ approval requirement.

Mr. Chan Chi Hung, the executive director of the Company
who resigned as director on 15 July 2013, has equity interests
in the Investment Manager and is one of the directors of the
Investment Manager during the year ended 31 December
2012. Mr. Chan has disposed his equity interests in the
Investment Manager and resigned as director during the year
ended 31 December 2013.

‘ China Financial Leasing Group Limited ‘ Annual Report 2013
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REAEEBB(REERHH] -
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RWMER 2 EEBAE L HER L

H-Z—=F+A—HE SAEE
% fh % A 70,0007 st & A 35,000 7%
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HE-_Z—=F+-_A=+—HLFE

25.

26.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(b)  Included in employee benefit expenses and
directors’ remuneration are key management
personnel compensation and comprises the
following categories:

Short term employee benefits HEEEET
Contributions to defined

contribution plans

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The Group is exposed to financial risks through its use of
financial instruments in its ordinary course of operations
and in its investment activities. The financial risks include
market risk (including currency risk, price risk and
interest risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Group’s overall risk management focuses on
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s
financial performance. The Group currently does
not have any written risk management policies
and guidelines. However, the board of directors
meets periodically and cooperates closely with key
management to analyse and formulate strategies to
manage and monitor financial risk. The Group has not
used any derivatives or other instruments for hedging
purpose. The most significant financial risks to which the
Group is exposed to are described below.

TE R S

N

25.

=
A

26.

BEALRS (E)

b)) REEENRAXMEEMESEE
TBZEEABZHE - BN

Dk

Group
REE
2013 2012
—E——4F
HK$’000
FET

—E—=4F
HK$’000
FET

4,262 3,815
57 58
4,319 3,873
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26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 26.
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

BHEREREERAVEFE

(IIFE.;)

(i)  Categories of financial assets and liabilities (i) HMEEEREEER
The carrying amounts presented in the Fa RARIMBRAKRAZT
consolidated and company statements of financial BATHUBEENTKEE
position related to the following categories of R ZBRMEME

financial assets and financial liabilities:

Group
Z ]
2013

Company

Vi/NE]
2013
—T-=F
HK$’000
TET

2012 2012
—E——F
HK$’000

TAET

HK$’000
TAT

HK$’000
TET

Financial assets BREE
At cost less impairment & AR {E
Available-for-sale FEVBEE
financial assets - 3,341 - 3,341
At fair value wAFE
Financial assets at BRBEEATE
fair value through BB EE
profit or loss 34,430 39,367 34,430 39,367
Cash and cash BekBReE
equivalents BB 8,641 8,300 8,641 8,300
43,071 51,008 43,071 51,008
Financial liabilities MBEE
At amortised cost RE SRR
Other payables and Hofth JE 1R
accruals fExt &R 370 436 370 421
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26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Foreign currency risk

Currency risk refers to the risk that the fair value
or future cash flow of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange
rates. The Group did not have significant
exposures to currency risk.

All the financial assets and liabilities of the Group
and the Company are denominated in HK$
except the available-for-sale financial assets are
denominated in RMB. The Group currently does
not have a foreign currency hedging policy in
respect of foreign currency transactions, assets
and liabilities. The Group will monitor its foreign
currency exposure closely and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure
should the need arise.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair
value or cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest
rates.

The Group has no borrowing which bears fixed
or floating interest rates. The Group’s exposure
to market risk for changes in interest rates relates
primarily to cash and cash equivalents. The Group
currently does not have any interest rate hedging
policy. However, the directors monitor interest
rate change exposure and will consider hedging
significant interest rate change exposure should
the need arise.

The directors are of the opinion that the Group’s
sensitivity to the change in interest rate is low.
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26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 26.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

(iv) Price risk
Equity price risk relates to the risk that the fair
values of equity securities will fluctuate because
of changes in the levels of equity indices and the
values of individual securities. The Group and
the Company are mainly exposed to equity price
risk arising from the investments in listed equity
securities classified as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss as at 31 December 2012 and
2013 as mentioned in note 17 which are valued at
quoted market prices at the reporting dates. The
Group’s and the Company’s investments in listed
equity securities are mainly publicly traded in the
Stock Exchange.

Equity price sensitivity analysis

For the equity securities listed on the Stock
Exchange, an average volatility of 2.24% (2012:
2.65%) has been observed in the Heng Seng
Index during 2013.

The table below summaries the impact of
increase/decrease of the Heng Seng Index on the
Group’s and the Company’s net loss for the year
and accumulated losses. The analysis is based
on the assumption that the Heng Seng Index had
increased/decreased by 10% (2012: 10%) with all
other variables held constant and all the Group’s
and the Company'’s listed equity securities moved
according to the historical correlation with the
Hang Seng Index:

BHEREREERAVEFE

(%)

(iv)

B = b

R EREREERAES A
E A B R D 188K & &R
BHEEZHMES 2 RARE
o E——FR-FT—=
F+ZA=+—0 " xE£EK
RAREEEMERGER L
BRAZES (W 17FT - 5
BREBEREAFENELZ
M EE - Wiki'Es B HAFT®
ZTEEE) MEENRKDE
BERE - AREBRARQRIRE
R ETRRANFE %5 3 E R A P

NG

BRIEGHE T
BMRBE AT E 2 RAEHM
T RZE—=FEEEHR
BEHYRE2.24%( —F——
F:2.65%) °

TEBUMEE RS ET T
HAKERARFFNERF
ARRABRERZZE
s DERBSE LR L
FOTFBI0%(Z 2 ——4F

@ETE - AAEERAAT
7 bR E R R R E A
BEERERBIT

2013 2013 2012 2012
—E—=F —ZE—=-fF ZE-—_-fF
+10% -10% +10% -10%

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
THET TET TET TET

Net loss for the year and F RN EBIFEE &
accumulated losses 2ETEE (3,443) 3,443 (3,937) 3,937
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26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

(v)

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty
to a financial instrument would fail to discharge
its obligation under the terms of the financial
instrument and cause a financial loss to the
Group.

The carrying amounts of these financial assets
presented in the consolidated and company
statements of financial position are net of
impairment losses, if any. The Group minimises its
exposure to the credit risk by rigorously selecting
the counterparties and performing ongoing
credit evaluation on the financial conditions.
Follow-up actions are taken in case of overdue
balances. In addition, management reviews the
recoverable amount of the receivables individually
or collectively at each reporting date to ensure
that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts.

The Group’s management considers that all the
above financial assets that are not impaired for
each of the reporting dates under review are of
good credit quality, including those that are past
due.

The credit risk on cash and cash equivalents is
limited because the counterparties are mainly
banks with high credit-ratings assigned by
international credit-rating agencies.

The credit and investment policies have been
followed by the Group since prior years and are
considered to have been effective in limiting the
Group’s exposure to credit risk to a desirable
level.
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26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)
(vi) Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group will
not be able to meet its obligations associated with
its financial liabilities.

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its
liquidity requirements to ensure that the Group
maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet its
liquidity requirements in the financial liabilities.
Cash flows are closely monitored on an ongoing
basis.

The liquidity policies have been followed by the
Group since prior years and are considered to
have been effective in managing liquidity risks.

All the Group’s and the Company’s financial
liabilities will be settled within 12 months from
the reporting date. As at 31 December 2012 and
2013, the Group has no borrowings.

Based on the assessment of the directors,
despite the continuous operating loss incurred
by the Group over the years, the liquidity risk
encountered by the Group is minimal considered
that the Group will have sufficient cash resources
to satisfy its future working capital after taking
into account the ability of the Group to conduct
fund raising activities and the ability to realise the
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

‘ China Financial Leasing Group Limited ‘ Annual Report 2013
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26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 26. Bi¥REKBREERAFETE

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) (&)

(vii) Fair value measurements recognised in the (vii)
statement of financial position
The hierarchy groups financial assets and liabilities
into three levels based on the relative reliability of
significant inputs used in measuring the fair value
of these financial assets and liabilities. The fair
value hierarchy has the following levels:

o Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets and liabilities;

° Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices
included within Level 1 that are observable
for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as
prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived form prices);
and

° Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that
are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which
the financial asset or liability is categorised in its
entirety is based on the lowest level of input that is
significant to the fair value measurement.

As at 31 December 2013, financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss measured at fair value
in the consolidated and company statements of
financial position are in accordance with level one
of the fair value hierarchy (2012: level one).
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27. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT - GROUP

27. EFXEE-FKH

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are: NREFEEEBEARAZBES :

(i) To safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as (i) REAREBIFELE 26
a going concern, so that it continues to provide B RN A A TR E R
returns and benefits for stakeholders; R FZ

(i) To support the Group’s stability and growth; and

(i) To provide capital for the purpose of
strengthening the Group’s risk management
capability.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its capital structure to ensure optimal capital structure
and shareholder returns, taking into consideration
the future capital requirements of the Group and
capital efficiency, prevailing and projected profitability,
projected operating cash flows, projected capital
expenditures and projected strategic investment
opportunities. The Group currently does not adopt any
formal dividend policy.

The Group also balances its overall capital structure
periodically. The Group manages the capital structure
and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in
economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the
underlying assets. In order to maintain or adjust the
capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount
of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders or issue new shares. The Group will also
consider the raise of long-term borrowings as second
resource of capital when investment opportunities arise
and the return of such investments will justify the cost of
debts from the borrowings.

(i) HBAEEZBEREE: &

(i) REESMEAEEZERE
BEEN -

AEBEBEGE R REEERR
B BRAGBREEANRBREHR
RERRBIR - W EEBAEERE
BemEBREARAKR - B MIEA
ErgEN  HALEHSRE A
B & R R S & TR ORISR S MR B
g o NEBE B AT ERIUEM ER
P BIEER -

AEETERFOREERRE -
AEBERNEKEBRES REHE
EZRBUEEEENMNAEEALAR
B RTHITINHEERARE > K
SEASABARRIMNZEE R
BEBRES TREIETHR -
AEETENRERSLAR =
BEEERHERERERZZS K
R MABRENDRE S S EK
ZIERERARRIZEFT ©
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27.

28.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT - GROUP
(Continued)

The Group regards total equity as capital, for capital
management purpose. The amount of capital as
at 31 December 2013 amounted to approximately
HK$43,053,000 (2012: HK$52,916,000), in which
the Group considers as optimal having considered
the projected capital expenditures and the projected
strategic investment opportunities.

The Group also endeavours to ensure the steady and
reliable cash flow from the normal business operation.
For both years ended 31 December 2012 and 2013, the
Group did not raise any debts.

SUBSEQUENT EVENT

On 20 February 2014, the Company and a placing
agent entered into the placing agreement pursuant to
which the Company has conditionally agreed to place,
through the placing agent, a maximum of 88,600,000
new shares at a price of HK$0.241 per share. On 21
February 2014, the Company and the placing agent
entered into a revised placing agreement to revise the
placing price from HK$0.241 to HK$0.26 per share.
The placing of shares is completed on 4 March 2014,
a total of 88,600,000 new shares have been issued by
the Company under the general mandate granted by the
shareholders at the 2013 Annual General Meeting.

27.

28.

EXEE -AEE(H)

AREBREAEEREBRNMGHEZER
BEHEAER - R_ZT—=F+_A8
=+ —HZEREH 43,053,000/
TE(=F— 4 152,916,000/ 7T) °
AEBKEREBANEAAS RTEH
KRR EEHKE  RAZSTERAER
EIKF o

AEBNEENHERE —REBL
EHMEBELAREREME - A
EFEVERNBE T ——_FK_F
— =+ A=t+—HIEMEFE
IR EAER -

FERARSE
RZE—MFE_HA=+H KRQF
HREREBITZESHE - Bt
RARFEBBRHEREBEARESRE
NESEREMD0241 B T2 BIREEE
% % 88,600,000 ¥ A% 15 - R =F
—MNFE-_A=+—8 ARQEHE
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
TR 2

A summary of the published results and of the assets and
liabilities of the Group for last five financial years, as extracted
from the audited financial statements, is set out below.
The summary dose not form part of the audited financial

AEERNBEEANHEEZ BBREM
FAERAEY BB (BREQERTHR
RIMFINT o AL TEREER S
HRz—H -

statements.
RESULTS ¥EiE
Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
i BHE BE BE G
—T—=F —E——fF —E——F —Z2-% =
+=B=+—-R8 +=ZF=+—-8 +=ZHA=+-8 +=HA=+—-A8 +=H
HFE EFE HFEE HFE
HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000
FHTT FHIT FHT FHTT FHIT
Revenue A 23 223 58 180 186
Loss before RETFTEHIA
income tax [E518 (9,863) (22,862) (12,170 (18,037) (8,324)
Income tax FTiSRiR Y
expense - - - - -

Loss attributable to ZR/A A

the owners wmE A
of the Company  fEf5 /iR (9,863) (22,862) (12,170) (18,037) (8,324)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEHEE

At At At At At
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
iy i N i i
= “EB-_F —T——f % TE
TZA=+—-H tZA=1-H
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FAT FAT FAET
Total assets AR E 43,423 518,52 36,353 17,500 45,623
Total liabilities BEE (870) (436) (328) (597) (42,489)
Net assets FEE 43,053 52,916 36,025 16,903 3,134
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